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To be a respected leader in regional water distribution and treatment. 

To provide efficient and reliable distribution and treatment of bulk water to meet our customers’ needs, 
in line with government policy, by performing as a profitable, proactive, highly competent and engaged 
organisation. 

Vision

Mission

Values

Customers first  • Know your customers
• Deliver what matters
• Make decisions with empathy

Ideas into action  • Challenge the norm and suggest solutions
• Encourage and embrace new ideas
• Work across boundaries

Unleash potential  • Expect greatness
• Lead and set clear expectations
• Seek, provide and act on feedback

Be courageous  • Own your actions, successes and mistakes
• Take calculated risks
• Act with transparency

Empower people  • Lead, empower and trust
• Play to everyone’s strengths
• Develop yourself and those around you
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Contact officer to whom enquiries are to be addressed 
for further information:

Chief Executive

Telephone: (07) 4740 1000

Facsimile: (07) 4740 1099

Email: info@mountisawater.qld.gov.au

Address: 31 Carbonate Street, Mount Isa, 
Queensland, 4825

Postal: PO Box 1712, Mount Isa,  
Queensland, 4825

Mount Isa Water Board Annual Report 2016-17.

© Mount Isa Water Board (Mount Isa Water Board) 2017. 
Published by the Queensland Government, September 2017, 
31 Carbonate Street, Mount Isa Qld 4825.

Photographs courtesy of Katie Schrodter and MIWB staff.

The Queensland Government supports and encourages 
the dissemination and exchange of information. However, 
copyright protects this document. The State of Queensland 
has no objection to this material being reproduced, made 
available online or electronically, but only if it is recognised 
as the owner of the copyright and this material remains 
unaltered. Copyright enquiries about this publication should 
be directed to Mount Isa Water Board by email to info@
mountisawater.qld.gov.au or by writing to PO Box 1712, 
Mount Isa, Qld 4825.

Copies of this publication can be obtained by contacting 
(07) 4740 1000, visiting Mount Isa Water Board’s office at 
31 Carbonate Street, Mount Isa during business hours or by 
downloading the report from www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au/
opendata/corporate-documents.

ISSN 1837-3097 



MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD  2016-17 ANNUAL REPORT4

15 September 2017

The Honourable Curtis Pitt MP 

Treasurer 

Minister for Trade and Investment and  

Acting Minister for Energy, Biofuels and Water Supply 

GPO Box 15456 

CITY EAST QLD 4002

Dear Minister

I am pleased to present the Annual Report 2016-17 and financial statements 

for Mount Isa Water Board.

I certify that this Annual Report complies with: 

•  the prescribed requirements of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 

and the Performance Management Standard 2009, and

•  the detailed requirements set out in the Annual report requirements for 

Queensland Government agencies.

A checklist outlining the annual reporting requirements can be found at 

pages 85 and 86 of this annual report or accessed at www.mountisawater.

qld.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Steven de Kruijff

Chair 
Mount Isa Water Board
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In October 2000, Mount Isa Water Board (MIWB) was 
established as a Category 1 Water Authority under the 
Water Act 2000 (Water Act) to operate on a commercial 
basis.

MIWB is responsible to the Minister for Energy, Biofuels 
and Water Supply, with its practices subject to regulating 
principles of the Water Act including autonomy, 
accountability and competitive neutrality.

Role and functions

Under section 569 of the Water Act, the main function of 
a water authority is to carry out water activities decided 
by that authority. A water authority may carry out water 
activities outside of its authority area if carrying out those 
activities does not limit its ability to perform its main 
function, or financially prejudice the authority, its ratepayers 
or customers. In the case of MIWB, any such activities 
must also be in accordance with its Performance Plan.

Each year, MIWB submits a Performance Plan to the 
Minister for approval, which details how MIWB will 
meet its responsibilities to its owner, the Queensland 
Government. These responsibilities are to:

•  conserve, store and supply bulk water to local and 
industrial customers

•  take appropriate measures to protect the quantity and 
quality of present and future water supplies

•  investigate and plan for future infrastructure 
requirements

•  construct, operate and maintain water infrastructure 
necessary to meet customer demands

•  administer and manage property under MIWB’s 
control and

•  act as trustee for R48 Recreational Reserve, a major 
catchment area around Lake Moondarra and one of 
the region’s primary water sources. 

Mount Isa Water Board commenced operation in 1974 to supply bulk water to industrial customers and 
the city of Mount Isa.

About Mount Isa Water Board
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Customers

MIWB’s three major customers are: 

•  Mount Isa City Council (MICC), which reticulates 
potable water to approximately 20,000 people  

•  Mount Isa Mines Ltd (MIM), a Glencore company, 
which uses non-potable water in its extraction, 
concentration and smelting processes and

•  Incitec Pivot Ltd (IPL), which uses non-potable water 
in its acid manufacturing processes.

MIWB is also the trustee of a water catchment and 
recreation reserve (R48 Reserve) around Lake Moondarra, 
located approximately 16 kilometres north of Mount Isa. 
MIWB acts as trustee on behalf of the Department of 
Natural Resources and Mines, as administrator of the 
Land Act 1994. 

R48 Reserve provides a sanctuary for wildlife and popular 
leisure areas, where MIWB maintains a number of 
recreational facilities including picnic and play areas and 
water sports facilities. 

•  MIWB is one of only two Category 1 water 
authorities in Queensland, which have specific 
responsibilities under legislation.

•  MIWB maintains $133 million of vital water 
supply and treatment infrastructure, including 
86 kilometres of transmission pipeline from 
Lake Julius to Mount Isa.

•  Each year MIWB supplies nearly 20,000 
megalitres of water from Lake Moondarra and 
Lake Julius to customers, or the equivalent of 
8,000 Olympic swimming pools.

•  MIWB pumps 100 per cent of the water 
supplied, with all water sources on the 
Leichhardt River downstream of Mount Isa. 
Despite significant pumping costs, MIWB’s 
supply is among the most cost competitive in 
the state.

•  MIWB conducts an extensive water quality 
sampling and testing program. Over 33,000 
water quality tests were conducted in 2016–17 
from 7540 samples, monitoring water provided 
to customers against the Australian Drinking 
Water Guidelines. 

•  MIWB treats the 20 megalitres of potable water 
supplied to MICC each day using an advanced 
microfiltration plant constructed in 2015.

•  MIWB employs 15 staff who live in Mount Isa 
and contribute to the Mount Isa community 
along with many local contractors.

•  MIWB provides amenities for visitors to the 
R48 Reserve, which include playgrounds, 
gazebos and barbecues.

•  Lake Moondarra facilities are visited and 
enjoyed by thousands of people each year, 
including local residents and visitors to the 
region.

Fast facts
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The report describes our performance in meeting the bulk 
water needs of existing customers and in ensuring the 
future bulk water needs of North West Queensland are 
identified and met.

The report has been prepared in accordance with the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009, which requires that all 
statutory bodies prepare annual reports and table them in 
the Legislative Assembly each financial year, the Financial 
and Performance Management Standard 2009, which provides 
specific requirements for information that is to be disclosed 
in annual reports, other legislative requirements and the 
Queensland Government’s Annual report requirements for 
Queensland Government agencies for 2016–17.

This report has been prepared for the Minister for Energy, 
Biofuels and Water Supply to submit to Parliament and 
to inform stakeholders including Commonwealth, State 
and local governments, industry and business associations 
and the community. 

MIWB is committed to providing accessible services to 
Queenslanders from all culturally and linguistically 
diverse backgrounds. If you have difficulty in understanding 
the annual report, you can contact us on (07) 4740 1000 
and we will arrange an interpreter to effectively 
communicate the report to you.

Readers are invited to comment on this report by 
emailing info@mountisawater.qld.gov.au 

This annual report provides information about MIWB’s financial and non-financial performance 
during 2016-17. 

Communication objective
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Objectives

MIWB’s key objectives are consistent with section 640 of 
the Water Act which are to be:

• commercially successful in carrying out its activities 

•  efficient and effective in providing goods and 
delivering services, including activities performed as 
community service obligations.

MIWB’s commercial success, efficiency and effectiveness 
are measured against financial and non-financial 
performance targets stated in the Performance Plan.

Key operational achievements

During 2016–17, MIWB:

•  achieved uninterrupted water delivery to industrial, 
commercial and residential customers

•  successfully managed supply through an on-going 
unprecedented blue-green algae bloom

•  completed the commissioning of filtration plant 
expansion to supply up to 30 megalitres of treated 
water per day to MICC, assuring ongoing water 
quality now and into the future, and

•  replaced half a kilometre of difficult-to-access-and-
repair critical trunk pipeline.

Key financial results

As shown in Table 1, there was an overall increase of 10.4 
per cent in revenue between 2015–16 and 2016–17. This 
is principally the result of the flow-on effect of higher 
electricity prices being passed on to customers.

Operating expenses increased by 11.3 per cent. This was 
mainly due to the recognition of a constructive liability 
with respect to disputed power charges.

Net assets increased by 1.40 per cent which is slightly less 
than the inflation rate.

2016–17 saw the uninterrupted supply of fit-for-purpose water to all our major industrial users and safe drinking 
water to the city. MIWB continued to improve the water quality supplied to Mount Isa City Council, investigating 
and implementing optimisation projects in line with the Board’s 2015 strategic direction statement.

Highlights of 2016–17
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Table 1 Financial performance overview 2016-17

2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Financial performance

Operating revenue $22.54M $20.42M $22.17M

Operating expenses $17.84M $16.03M $19.64M

 Operating profit $4.69M $4.39M $2.54M

 Profit from ordinary activities (after tax) (1) $3.28M $3.06M $1.79M

Financial position

Total assets $158.31M $153.84M $115.26M

Total liabilities $31.04M $28.34M $16.64M

Net assets $127.27M $125.50M $98.62M

Cash flow

Net cash provided by operating activities $8.94M $8.36M $7.67M

Cash at end of financial year $20.98M $20.15M $17.06M

Ratios

Current ratio 3.17 4.13 5.67

Liabilities/assets ratio 19.61% 18.42% 14.44%

Liabilities/equity ratio 24.39% 22.58% 16.87%
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I am pleased to present Mount Isa Water Board’s 2016–17 
Annual Report.

The 2016–17 headline financial performance figure of 
$4.69 million in gross operating profit is a great result and 
a continuation of recent sound financial management 
outcomes. The year also saw the largest dollar amount in 
recent years of MIWB’s profit returned to Mount Isa City 
Council, with nearly $2 million available for community 
purposes via this special grant from the Queensland 
Government.

As a Queensland public sector entity, Mount Isa Water 
Board is committed to the principle of “Customers First”. 
We exist to preserve and maximise the benefit of a safe 
and reliable water supply to the community we serve. 
MIWB has sought to embrace new ideas working with 
our customers to find new solutions to old problems. As  
a local employer, the Board takes seriously our part in 
supporting the regional economy and contributing to the 
Government’s Advancing North Queensland plan.

During the period, the Board placed a strong emphasis on 
improving the capital delivery process. While this is yet to 
yield the high level of reliability the Board expects, it is 
pleasing to see that substantial progress has been made in 
the processes implemented by MIWB’s management and 
staff. The Board has set clear expectations in this area as 
part of our commitment to unleashing the potential to be 
delivered as benefits to our customers.

There are many challenges ahead. Notably, resolution of 
our on-going power supply arrangements is still to be 
finalised; however, the recent commitment by both parties 
to a timely resolution is pleasing. Ultimately, our success 
as an organisation is completely tied to the success of our 
stakeholders – we in the North West will only succeed 
together.

It was my pleasure to welcome Councillor George Fortune 
to the Board this year as the nominee of the new City 
Council. I know George shares my commitment to the 
Mount Isa community and will serve their interests well. I 
also extend a special thank you to the outgoing nominee, 
Mr Brett Peterson, and acknowledge the contribution his 
local business experience made to MIWB during his term.

I wish to thank my fellow Board members, our Chief 
Executive Stephen Farrelly, our management and staff for 
their continued efforts to ensure Mount Isa’s water supply 
is secure and sustainable, and thus protecting the 
community’s best interest now and into the future.

Mr Steven de Kruijff

Chair 
Mount Isa Water Board

Chair’s review
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Mount Isa Water Board is a business deeply and intrinsically 
embedded in the community we serve. The continued 
reliability of our water supply service is fundamental to 
the success of our community and the economy of our 
North West region. MIWB cannot and does not maintain 
this service without help and sincere thanks go to all the 
local businesses and service providers who have 
contributed to the success of the 2016–17 financial year.

For the third year running, MIWB has achieved an improved 
financial result, this year reaching $3.28 million net profit 
after tax in the context of significant cost pressures. 

Working across boundaries to achieve optimal outcomes, 
MIWB this year continued to invest in working closely 
with customers on combined system modelling, identifying 
improvement opportunities. The team’s significant 
expertise in this area and disposition to challenge the status 
quo has given rise to the multiple new initiatives, which 
we are now seeking to turn into real improvements in 
customer outcomes — turning ideas into action consistent 
with the values we endorse as an organisation.

During the year MIWB undertook a number of initiatives 
to assure the supply capacity for drinking water remains 
sufficient for the foreseeable future. In cooperation with 
the Mount Isa City Council, MIWB undertook two rounds 
of leak detection works on the city’s water reticulation 
system. More than 100 leaks were located, with repairs by 
the Mount Isa City Council saving the associated cost of 
pumping and chlorinating the lost volume of water. MIWB 
also expanded the filtration plant to the full 30 megalitres 
per day design capacity. This ensures MIWB’s ability to 
deliver safe drinking water even on the highest of 
consumption days and under the most adverse conditions.

The year also saw the further raising of water quality 
standards with the revision of the Australian Drinking 
Water Guidelines and Queensland Department of Health 
standards in November 2016. While the tightened 
guidelines, combined with the continuing poor condition 
of the Clear Water Lagoon system, leave no room for 
complacency, MIWB’s established commitment to 
continuous improvement in this area meant we were well 
placed to meet the challenge.

To achieve continuous improvement across our business, 
significant effort has been put into improving the 
measurement and tracking of key performance indicators. 
Although in some cases this has suggested that our historic 
performance may not have been as good as it had previously 
appeared, the benefits of quality measurement systems 
and a courageous approach to the transparent reporting  
of our success or otherwise will result in long-term gain.

The Board took the bold step of significantly increasing 
the delegation of authority to the operational team, within 
a formal framework of accountability and transparency. This 
has empowered the team to execute system improvements 
and improved the efficiency of business processes, while  
at the same time furthered the objectives of the State 
Procurement Policy. 

During the year MIWB continued on a path of 
improving our engagement with the community, who we 
value as customers of the services provided at the R48 
Reserve recreational facilities which we maintain. We have 
increasingly received positive feedback on our engagement 
with the community groups who frequent the site. As the 
trustee for the Reserve, MIWB’s first responsibility is to 
preserve the quality of the water catchment; however 
working with the proponents of various events and 
initiatives that enhance the recreational value of the R48 
Reserve is seen as a priority by the Board.

To all the members of the Board, my senior managers and 
staff, thank you for your support during the year. I look 
forward to addressing new challenges and delivering 
continuous improvement in the coming year.

Mr Stephen Farrelly

Chief Executive 
Mount Isa Water Board

Chief Executive’s report
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Core business 

MIWB is a Category 1 Water Authority established under 
the Water Act 2000 (Water Act) which operates as a 
commercialised statutory authority, carrying out water 
activities in the State of Queensland. 

MIWB’s core business activities include: 

•  undertaking activities necessary as a registered Water 
Service Provider under the Water Supply (Safety and 
Reliability) Act 2008

•  managing the infrastructure required to transport 
bulk water from storages at Lake Moondarra and 
Lake Julius to customers, and applying appropriate 
water treatment processes to comply with MIWB’s 
legislative and commercial requirements

•  conducting ongoing investigations and planning for 
future infrastructure requirements relevant to MIWB 
operations and

•  constructing, operating and maintaining the bulk 
water transport and treatment infrastructure core to 
MIWB operations. 

Additional activities 

MIWB also acts as the nominated trustee for the Water 
and Recreation R48 Reserve (R48 Reserve) on behalf  
of the Department of Natural Resources and Mines, as 
administrator of the Land Act 1994. The R48 Reserve 
covers an area of approximately 11,000 hectares and 
includes the lands surrounding Lake Moondarra.

MIWB’s role as trustee of the R48 Reserve is independent 
of its water distribution functions under the Gulf Resource 
Operations Plan (Gulf ROP). However, section 570 of 
the Water Act provides the specific head of power by which 
a water authority may carry out other functions, including 
land management and provision of recreational facilities.

MIWB recognises the importance of this recreational area 
to the Mount Isa community and manages the operation 
and maintenance of these public recreational facilities.

Operating environment
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Regional climate and rainfall 

Mount Isa is located on the Leichhardt River. The city lies 
about 340 kilometres south of the Gulf of Carpentaria 
with the Coral Sea coast about 750 kilometres to the east. 
Leichhardt River Dam, which forms Lake Moondarra, is 
the primary source of local water. This supply is augmented 
by Lake Julius Dam to assure the region’s total water demand. 

The Leichhardt River catchment covers around 33,000 
square kilometres. The river rises in the Selwyn Ranges, 
40 kilometres south-east of Mount Isa, flowing in a 
northerly direction through the city and Lake Moondarra, 
before passing through to the Lake Julius Dam. 

During the summer, Mount Isa has two types of weather; 
hot and wet, and hot and dry (predominantly the latter) 
with maximum temperatures reaching well above 40oC.

Around 75 per cent of annual rainfall occurs in the wet 
season, between December and March, usually through 
heavy thunderstorms resulting from intense heat and 
from the passage of the inland trough systems which can 
occur during this time. Heavy and prolonged rain and 
flooding occur periodically, often associated with monsoon 
troughs in the Gulf of Carpentaria moving south across 
the region. 

Mount Isa district’s rainfall can vary from less than 250 mm 
one year to greater than 500 mm the following. The lowest 
recorded annual rainfall was 93 mm in 2013, with the 
highest annual rainfall on record of 1,092 mm recorded 
only two years earlier in 2011. 

During 2016–17, Mount Isa received 639 mm rainfall 
which was above the historic average, largely due to 
unseasonal 2016 calendar year rains. While Mount Isa 
received only a modest amount of rainfall over the 
December to January period, Lake Julius reached its full 
capacity following the first major storm of the season in 
mid-December. Lake Moondarra, on the other hand, 
peaked at only 69.9 per cent in February and a drier-
than-average autumn and winter have seen the lake finish 
the year below the June average level. Water allocations 
for both schemes were announced at 100 per cent at the 
start of the 2017–18 water year.

Storage dams

MIWB distributes and treats bulk water drawn from Lake 
Moondarra, which has a capacity of 106,800 megalitres, 
and from Lake Julius, which has a capacity of 107,500 
megalitres. 

When full, Lake Moondarra Dam has a water surface area 
of about 2,200 hectares and has a relatively shallow 
topography. Lake Julius has about half the water surface 
area and a relatively deep topography. Consequently, Lake 
Moondarra has a much higher evaporation loss than Lake 
Julius. Evaporation rates can be up to three metres a year.

Construction of the Lake Julius Dam in the 1970s 
allowed for the allocation of additional water to Mount 
Isa to supplement the region’s water supply. However, 
customers elect to use the Moondarra supply when 
available due to the higher electricity cost of pumping 
water from Lake Julius.

Future planning 

Water authorities across Australia, including MIWB, face 
significant forward capital investment programs to maintain 
service and meet future needs. Significant uncertainty exists 
regarding the extent to which historic rainfall, inflow and 
consumption data can be relied upon as the basis for 
planning, thus making planning more complex. 

The combined capacity of Lake Moondarra and Lake Julius 
can provide a number of years’ supply based on typical 
consumption. In an average year Lake Moondarra is able 
to supply all of the water.

With good winter rainfall in 2016, the 2016–17 water year 
commenced with 100 per cent Announced Allocations for 
both Lake Moondarra and Lake Julius schemes. As a result, 
about 88 per cent of all water supplied in 2016–17 was 
sourced from Lake Moondarra to avoid the high pumping 
costs from Lake Julius.  
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The Mount Isa region ends the reporting period with a 
modest risk on water supply reliability in the Moondarra 
system, but there is adequate supply available in the back-
up storage, Lake Julius. One hundred (100) per cent 
Announced Allocation for both lakes was granted to the 
water allocation holders (comprising MIWB and its 
major customers) for the 2017–18 water year. While there 
is more than sufficient capacities in both lakes to last for 
the 2017–18 reporting period, MIWB continues to work 
with customers in water conservation-related activities. 

MIWB continues to maintain the operational and 
technical capabilities necessary to provide this essential 
commodity to the Mount Isa community. MIWB will 
continue to respond to current and future regional water 
needs and be prepared for the challenges posed by 
drought, economic uncertainty and potential changes in 
the service needs of industrial customers.

Blue-green algae blooms

During 2016–17 Mount Isa experienced blue-green algae 
blooms in Lake Julius, Lake Moondarra and the 
continuation of the exceptional bloom in Clear Water 
Lagoon where environmental conditions were favourable 
to algal growth.

MIWB has continued to conduct investigations into 
rehabilitation options for Clear Water Lagoon, and is 
continuing with the Deep Well Pump Station capital 

works, which will allow the next steps in rehabilitation to 
proceed. The natural sedimentation process in Clear Water 
Lagoon continues to provide some benefit to the overall 
water quality outcomes. However, the current degraded 
ecosystem of beneficial plants demonstrates that this natural 
system cannot be relied upon to meet modern drinking 
water quality standards. The treatment plant was expanded 
in the third quarter of the financial year, ensuring MIWB 
is well placed to meet the demand for drinking water 
from the city, both now and into the future.

Regulatory changes

MIWB is a Category 1 Water Authority and its functions 
are consistent with, or related to, the purpose for which it 
was established, including core distribution services and 
related activities such as water quality and treatment.

In Queensland the National Energy Customer Framework 
commenced on 1 July 2015, impacting the legal framework 
regulating MIWB’s activities with respect to its registration 
to distribute electricity under Special Approval SA05/97. 
Following the implementation of the federal National 
Energy Retail Law under the state framework, MIWB relied 
on a Class D10 deemed exemption, as a government 
entity established for purposes other than electricity supply 
or the provision of residential housing. During 2016–17 
MIWB applied for and was granted an R5 exemption, 
which has differing conditions more suited to our context.

Lake capacity compared with water supplied
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Objectives

MIWB’s strategic objectives are established by section 
640 of the Water Act which requires that MIWB is:

•  commercially successful in carrying out its activities and

• efficient and effective in providing goods and services.

MIWB’s activities must be consistent with its commercial 
mandate which requires MIWB to:

• meet its statutory obligations

• earn a commercial rate of return on investment and

•  achieve a sustainable return to the Queensland 
Government.

Government objectives for the community

The Queensland Government has set objectives for the 
community including: creating jobs and a diverse economy, 
delivering quality frontline services, building safe, caring and 
connected communities and protecting the environment. 
These objectives are underpinned by integrity, accountability 
and consultation.

MIWB’s business operations are focused on providing a 
cost efficient, safe and reliable water supply to our customers 
in a way that matches stakeholder needs. By delivering on 
this, MIWB positively impacts on the local community and 
contributes to the achievement of government objectives.

Operational objectives

In implementing MIWB’s statutory objectives and the 
government’s objectives for the community, and in order 
to advance the achievement of the vision, the Board has 
set out a strategy to:

•  ASSURE: ensure our governance and business 
management practices are of the highest standard

•  OPTIMISE: improve the long run service output of 
the asset base and secure service quality and reliability 
at the lowest sustainable cost

•  ENGAGE: participate in respectful dialogue with our 
stakeholders, including our local community to 
develop strategic, mutually beneficial relationships 

•  INNOVATE: seek out opportunities to add value for 
new and existing customers, creating value for our 
‘shareholder’.

Operational outcomes 

MIWB’s non-financial performance targets in its corporate 
and performance plans measure the extent to which it 
meets legislative reporting requirements, fulfils corporate 
and social responsibility, delivers a reliable and quality 
bulk water supply to customers, and realises positive 
business outcomes. MIWB’s performance against these 
objectives is shown in Table 2.  

Measuring our performance
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Table 2 Non-financial performance during 2016-17

Performance Measures Target  
30 June 2017

Actual Outcomes 
30 June 2017

Commercial results
Business 
operations

Executed customer service agreements 100% of supply 100% of supply

Administrative costs per ML supplied to MICC 
Revenue per ML supplied

$76/ML of  
$1,284/ML

$58/ML of  
$1,524/ML  (1)

Capital projects completed 100% 54%

Corporate 
responsibility

Incidences of lost time injuries in 2015-16 0 incidents 1 incident  (2)

Compliance with departmental (DEWS) 
reporting deadlines

100% 100%

Breach notices received pertaining to non-
compliance with legislation and standards

0 0

Operational results

Operational 
efficiency

Target of metering accuracy 97.5% 97.5%

Target of water losses from distribution system Maximum 500 ML 310 ML

Water quality Provision of water as specified (under contract 
and legislation)

100% 100%

Non-complying drinking water tests for E.coli 0 0

Non-complying drinking water tests for other 
health parameters

0 12 or 1.1%  (3)

Non-complying tests for E.coli (industrial supply) 0 7  (4)

Non-complying tests for other health 
parameters (industrial supply)

0 5 or 0.3%  (4)

Non-complying tests for aesthetic parameters in 
drinking water

0% 2.5%  (4)

Reliability of 
supply

Compliance with pressure at customer connection 
points

100% 100%

Number of unplanned interruptions 0 10

Water main/pipe leakages per 100 km 0 3

(1) During the period MIWB took to account significant increases in electricity charges which substantially increased the cost per megalitre supplied
(2) Refer to Health and Safety on page 33
(3)  There was an open water quality incident at the commencement of the period. A single new incident occurred in 2016-17 financial year 

following the new guideline limit issued by the Queensland Health. Multiple test results were recorded during the incident. More detail refer 
to the Water Quality on page 20

(4) Refer to Water Quality on page 20
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During the year special focus was placed on improving 
measurement of key performance indicators including 
implementing systems independent of the operations and 
maintenance contractor. As a result, MIWB recorded 10 
unplanned service interruptions. None of the service 
interruptions resulted in any disruption of supply to the 
end consumers who are the customers of MIWB’s customers. 
The improved measurement and recording of outages has 
allowed for identification of improvement opportunities 
in our system which will work to the benefit of the long-
term service reliability.

Overall water losses were 2.0 per cent of the total volume 
supplied. Customer water quality remained broadly stable 
over the period despite more stringent standards applied by 
revised water quality guidelines. Instances of water quality 
outside of guideline criteria related to second-order effects 
of the on-going blue-green algae blooms and very poor 
raw water quality (refer Water quality section, page 20). 

Engineering

MIWB experienced a challenging year of engineering and 
operations for the 2016–17 period with multiple operational 
and infrastructure projects being delivered. MIWB continued 
to operate and optimise the new membrane filtration plant 
at Mount Isa Terminal Reservoir Complex to ensure that 
supply to MICC met the required ADWG standards and 
accepted practice with respect to blue-green algal levels. A 
revised chlorine dosing strategy was fine-tuned to further 
improve water quality performance, and all changes to the 
water treatment system were documented in the latest revision 
of the Drinking Water Quality Management Plan (DWQMP).

Notable engineering achievements for the period include:

•  installing and commissioning a sixth MF5000 
microfiltration treatment train to meet the peak 
demands of the MICC supply requirements

•  installing a new 3.3kV switchboard for Lake Moondarra 
Deep Well Pump Station and Col Popple Pump Station 
and design of associated infrastructure

•  installing a new transformer to supply power to the 
Lake Julius power system

•  completing the Lake Moondarra pipeline replacement 
project, renewing a half kilometre section of pipeline 
in a difficult-to-access area

•  developing in collaboration with Mount Isa City 

Council, a dynamic combined system model allowing 
service-level modelling and current and future 
configurations

•  improving physical security and access control at the 
Terminal Reservoir Complex and

•  ongoing improvements to Lake Julius power supply 
infrastructure.

Operations and maintenance

MIWB has a contracted arrangement with MIM to 
perform MIWB’s operations and maintenance services. 
Scheduled operations and maintenance achievements of 
the Utilities Department during 2016–17 included:

•  operating and maintaining all chlorine dosing systems 
including daily checks and regular service of all 
equipment 

•  monitoring and cleaning of storage tanks; sediment 
removal and cleaning of South Tank 

•  performing daily checks on all pumps in operation; 
replacement of Deep Well Pump Station pump element

•  repairing tanks, pipes, valves, non-return valves and 
actuators as required; overhaul of weed screens at 
pump intake

• servicing of all air compressor equipment

•  switchyard maintenance; repair of substation and 
switchyard components to rectify issues identified 
during partial discharge testing

• transformer maintenance and installation 

• switchboard maintenance

• performing power line repairs and pole replacements

•  repairing washouts and creek crossings on the Lake 
Julius Road after rain events

• repairing filtration equipment as required

•  assisting with management of control network, 
communication and telemetry equipment

•  providing technical assistance with analysis of MIWB 
assets

•  providing technical assistance with scoping electrical 
projects for medium and low voltage assets, and
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•  providing labour and operational knowledge to assist 
MIWB engineers with design/scoping/isolation 
activities on specific projects.

Water quality

MIWB continues to provide its customers with high quality 
water in accordance with customer supply contracts and 
MIWB’s Drinking Water Quality Management Plan 
(DWQMP). The Australian Drinking Water Guidelines 
(ADWG) provide direction on what constitutes safe, 
good quality water and how it can be achieved, and also 
considers aesthetic parameters. MIWB is committed to 
continuous improvement of the water treatment process 
and has investigated and implemented various system 
improvements during the year.

MIWB uses a microfiltration plant as the primary water 
treatment barrier in combination with chlorine disinfection. 
MIWB continues to use Clear Water Lagoon, primarily as 
a natural sedimentation system to reduce the concentration 
levels of inorganic minerals.

The raw water storages at Lake Moondarra and Lake Julius 
are also monitored against the Australian and New Zealand 
Environment and Conservation Council (ANZECC) 
freshwater ecosystem guidelines. During the 2016–17 period, 
88 per cent of water supplied was from Lake Moondarra, 
and the remaining 12 per cent was from Lake Julius.

In times of high turbidity and blue-green algae levels, 
flocculent dosing (a process designed to clarify water and 
reduce turbidity) and/or a Powdered Activated Carbon 
system, can also be included to improve water quality in 
some instances; however, these facilities were not used 
during 2016–17. 

ADWG include two different types of guideline criteria:

•  a health-related guideline criterion, which is the 
concentration or measure of a water quality 
characteristic that, based on present knowledge, does 
not result in any significant risk to the health of the 
consumer over a lifetime of consumption

•  an aesthetic guideline criterion, which is the 
concentration or measure of a water quality 
characteristic that is associated with the ‘acceptability’ 
to the consumer, e.g. appearance, taste and odour.

During 2016–17, water supplied to major customers was 
99.2 per cent compliant with relevant health parameter 

limits. It should be noted that the guidelines do not contain 
specific test limits relating to blue-green algae levels. The 
significant and on-going blue-green algae outbreak in 
Clear Water Lagoon that began during 2013-14 and 
reached new unprecedented highs the following year has 
continued through 2016–17. Water supplied as raw and 
semi-treated industrial water has continued to have high 
BGA cell counts and is not fit to drink without further 
treatment. MIWB provides this further treatment to 
ensure water supplied to MICC is in accordance with 
ADWG requirements.

Despite its poor condition, Clear Water Lagoon has 
continued to effectively remove inorganic minerals and 
suspended solids from the water, resulting in semi-treated 
water being available for supply to industrial customers 
and complementing the downstream filtration system for 
the MICC supply. MIWB continues to investigate 
remediation strategies for Clear Water Lagoon to reverse 
the observed ecological collapse. During 2016–17 MIWB 
commenced the renewal of the aeration infrastructure 
installed in the lagoon with a view to ensuring continued 
inorganic mineral removal, minimising nutrient availability 
which favours algae, and improving performance within 
aesthetic water quality parameters.

One new drinking water quality incident was reported to 
the Department of Energy and Water Supply (DEWS) 
Water Supply Regulation. This incident was a period of 
elevated disinfection by-product levels which was directly 
related to more stringent water quality requirements in 
place since November 2016. The water quality outcome in 
MIWB product water for the whole year was a significant 
improvement on historic outcomes. None the less, MIWB 
continues to seek out further improvement opportunities, 
implementing further refinement to the chlorine dosing 
strategy and chlorine monitoring systems. The already 
implemented changes and those still under development 
using the advanced system model now in place not only 
significantly reduce the baseline levels of disinfection by-
products year-on-year but also reduce chlorine consumption 
and associated costs. MIWB is collaborating closely with 
Mount Isa City Council to improve the water quality 
outcome across the combined system for the benefit of 
consumers.

In 2016–17 there were more than 33,000 water quality tests 
conducted across the water distribution and treatment 
system from 7,540 individual water samples. At the 
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points of discharge to customers, the percentage of tests 
compliant with ADWG parameter thresholds was:

•  99.4  per cent for industrial supply health parameter 
tests (seven discrete incidents)

•  98.9 per cent for drinking water health parameter 
tests (two multi-week incidents)

•  97.5 per cent for aesthetic parameter tests (excluding 
chlorine) for drinking water supplies.

The testing and sampling program is regularly reviewed to 
reflect changes in the system, emerging water quality trends 
and changes in water quality guidelines.

Compliance with water quality thresholds is shown in 
Table 3. There was an annual 98.8 per cent compliance at 
the discharge point to MIWB customers with the new, 
more stringent targets.

Table 3 Water quality compliance 2016-17

Month
Health parameter  

compliance at discharge  
point for industrial water

Drinking water  
aesthetic compliance 
(excluding chlorine)*

Health parameter  
compliance at discharge  
point for drinking water

Jul-16 97.1% 100.0% 95.8%

Aug-16 99.4% 98.9% 100.0%

Sep-16 100.0% 95.7% 100.0%

Oct-16 99.3% 96.6% 100.0%

Nov-16 100.0% 95.7% 100.0%

Dec-16 100.0% 91.7% 100.0%

Jan-17 99.4% 96.0% 98.9%

Feb-17 99.0% 95.7% 97.7%

Mar-17 100.0% 97.9% 100.0%

Apr-17 100.0% 100.0% 98.7%

May-17 99.4% 100.0% 98.3%

Jun-17 99.1% 100.0% 97.9%

Average 99.4% 97.5% 98.9%

*  Consistent with the requirements of the ADWG, chlorine dosing above the aesthetic limit occurs to ensure adequate biological control within the 
MICC distribution system.
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The following general water quality related events occurred 
in 2016–17:

•  No E.coli was detected in any drinking water supplied 
to MICC during 2016–17.

•  MIWB’s Drinking Water Quality Management Plan 
(DWQMP) was revised and approved during the 
reporting period.

•  Lake Moondarra, Lake Julius and Clear Water Lagoon 
all experienced blue-green algae blooms during the 
reporting period. The bloom in Clear Water Lagoon 
is a continuation of the major event which began in 
2013. Drinking water quality continues to be assured 
with the microfiltration plant very effective in 
removing blue-green algae.

•  Recreational water users of Lake Moondarra were 
advised of the blue-green algae bloom during the 
event. The laboratory continues to monitor recreation 
water quality and advise users accordingly.

MIWB continues to invest in technology and training in 
managing the water quality. External water quality testing is 
undertaken by an independent NATA accredited laboratory.

Services 
R48 Reserve 

As Trustee for R48 Reserve, MIWB continued to maintain 
the public reserve amenities and parks in this area. These 
comprise several public facilities in and around Transport 
Bay, Blackrock and Warrina Park areas, including walking 
tracks and recreational areas popular with the community.

During the reporting period there was a number of health, 
safety and environmental management initiatives undertaken 
to improve recreational users’ safety, convenience and 
enjoyment. These included replacing the Warrina Park 
playground fall matting, felling of termite-affected trees 
and general tree management in public areas along with 
general grounds maintenance. In addition to the regular 
clean-up activities, such as removing dumped car bodies 
and repairing vandalism within the reserve boundaries, 
MIWB participated in Clean Up Australia Day, with the 
majority of staff volunteering their time to contribute. 

During the period MIWB continued to engage with 
numerous community groups regarding the future 
management of the reserve. A number of term Trustee 
Permits were entered into with recreational user groups.

During the period MIWB continued with a substantial 
aquatic weed-harvesting program to manage a large increase 
in the growth rate in the weeds and maintain important 
recreational amenity. MIWB continues to be a sponsor of 
the major prize offered at the local Mount Isa fishing 
competition, the Lake Moondarra Fishing Classic.
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MIWB governance framework

Board operations and membership

The Board is responsible for overseeing MIWB’s corporate 
governance, including setting its strategic direction, 
establishing goals for management and monitoring 
performance against these goals.

The Board is accountable to the Minister for MIWB’s 

efficient and effective performance. Each Board member 
is required to act in MIWB’s best interests and ensure 
MIWB acts in accordance with its Performance and 
Corporate Plans. 

Since 27 September 2013 the composition of the MIWB 
Board of Directors has been five directors appointed by 
the Governor in Council – with one being a nominee of 
MICC.

MIWB’s vision is to be a respected leader in regional water distribution and treatment. To achieve this, MIWB 
will be a sustainable, commercialised and customer-focused business which is engaged with its community. We 
will manage risks appropriately to ensure water delivery is safe, reliable and cost efficient. MIWB is committed 
to ensuring our governance and business management are of the highest standard.

Managing our business
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Mr Steve de Kruijff 

OAM, MAusIMM

Director and Board Chair 
since May 2016 

Steve de Kruijff’s career spans 
almost four decades in the 
mining industry, predominantly 
in North West Queensland. 

Mr de Kruijff was previously the Chief Operating Officer 
for Glencore’s Australian Copper Assets Australia until 
February 2014. Prior to this role, Mr de Kruijff was 
General Manager of Xstrata’s Mount Isa Copper Operations 
until December 2006 and Chief Operating Officer of 
Xstrata Copper’s North Queensland division to May 
2013. Mr de Kruijff has been a Director of a number of 
Xstrata’s subsidiary companies and is a past President  
of the Queensland Resources Council (QRC). He is a 
current director of the Australasian Institute of Mining 
and Metallurgy (AusIMM) and was awarded the 2008 
AusIMM Jim Torlach Health and Safety Award and an 
OAM in the 2016 Australia Day Honors List for his 
contribution to the mining industry and communities. 
Mr de Kruijff is a member of MIWB’s Finance, Audit  
and Compliance Committee.

Mr Myles Johnston 

BSc (Hons), FAusIMM

Director since February 2010 

Myles Johnston has 26 years’ 
experience in the mining 
industry, working for a 
number of major mining 
companies in a variety of 

exploration, project development and operational roles in 
gold and base metals both in Australia and overseas. Mr 
Johnston previously worked at Mount Isa Mines and held 
a number of technical and operational roles in both the 
zinc and copper business units including General Manager 
of Ernest Henry Mine. Mr Johnston is a member of 
MIWB’s Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee.

Ms Alison Bohannan 

BA (HSS), MA, FAIM, MAICD

Director since April 2014 

Alison Bohannan is the co-
owner/Director of Hertz 
Mount Isa. Ms Bohannan 
utilises more than two 
decades of professional 

management, board director governance and leadership 
experience in the not-for-profit companies and environment 
sectors. Ms Bohannan is a member of MIWB’s Finance, 
Audit and Compliance Committee.

Mr Neil Hatherly 

BSc (Hons), FAICD, FAusIMM

Director since April 2014 

Neil Hatherly has extensive 
board governance experience 
in several sectors, including 
listed companies, government- 
owned corporations, 

universities and not-for-profit organisations. Mr Hatherly 
is currently Chairman of Field Services Group of Brisbane 
City Council and a director of UniQuest, University of 
Queensland’s commercialisation company. Mr Hatherly 
previously worked for Mount Isa Mines in several technical 
and managerial roles. Mr Hatherly is a member of 
MIWB’s Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee.

During the period members of the Board Directors of MIWB were:
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Mr George Fortune

Nominated by MICC

Director since September 
2016 

George Fortune has been a 
Councillor with Mount Isa 
City Council for more than 
five years. Mr Fortune is a 

long-term resident and an active community advocate, 
former secretary of the Mount Isa Fish Stocking Group 
and former Event Manager for the Lake Moondarra 
Fishing Classic. Mr Fortune is a director of MIWB by 
nomination of the elected City Council, replacing Mr 
Peterson who was the nominee of the former elected City 
Council. Mr Fortune is also a member of MIWB’s 
Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee.

Mr Brett Peterson

Nominated by MICC

Director from June 2014 
until September 2016 

Brett Peterson was a Councillor 
with Mount Isa City Council 
for over 12 years and Deputy 
Mayor from 2012 until March 

2016. Mr Peterson is the Managing Director of Mount 
Isa Mining Supplies and a long-term resident, with Mount 
Isa his birthplace. Mr Peterson was a director of MIWB 
by nomination of the former elected City Council and 
remained a director until the replacement MICC nominee 
was officially appointed. Mr Peterson was also a member 
of MIWB’s Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee.

* Under the Water Act, notwithstanding a person is a 
nominee of an entity, they are required to act in the best 
interests of the MIWB.

Ms Karen Read

BBUS, CPA, MAICD, MAMI 

Independent Chair of Finance, 
Audit and Compliance 
Committee (was formerly 
Director of MIWB from 
September 2004 to June 2014)

Karen Read worked for the 
Glencore Xstrata Group for 29 years and worked in Mount 
Isa for a number of years from 1995, where she was a 
director of several group companies until finishing in 
September 2013. She is a Certified Practising Accountant, 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors 
and a member of the Australian Mutuals Institute. She 
serves on the boards of a credit union, a health fund and 
the finance committee of the North West Hospital and 
Health Board.
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Board attendance

The Board meets 11 times a year, or more if required. During 2016–17 it held 16 meetings, and attendances by members 
of the Board are shown in Table 4.

Table 4 Board meeting attendance 2016–17

Director Meetings 
attended

Meetings 
eligible to 

attend
Last appointed Expired

Steven de Kruijff (Chair) 16 16 Appointed 27 May 2016 26 May 2019

Alison Bohannan 15 16 Appointed 19 June 2014 19 June 2017*

Neil Hatherly 14 16 Appointed 19 June 2014 19 June 2017*

Myles Johnston 15 16 Appointed 19 June 2014 19 June 2017*

George Fortune 9 12 Appointed 15 September 2016 15 September 2019

Brett Peterson 4 4 Appointed 19 June 2014
30 September 2015* 
(ceased 15 September 

2016)

* Under section 604 (2) of the Water Act, a MIWB Board member remains in office even after their term has expired until their successor is appointed 
by Governor in Council as notified in the Queensland Government Gazette. As a consequence, until the appointment of the new director in 
September 2016, the MIWB Board comprised those directors at the start of the reporting period.

In accordance with the Trustee arrangements for R48 Reserve, Board meetings for Reserve matters are held separately to 
provide a distinct division of governance. 

Table 5 R48 Reserve meeting attendance 2016–17

Director Meetings attended Meetings eligible to attend

Steven de Kruijff (Chair) 10 10

Alison Bohannan 9 10

Neil Hatherly 9 10

Myles Johnston 6 10

George Fortune 7 8

Brett Peterson 2 2
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Table 6      Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee meeting attendance 2016–17

Director Meetings attended Meetings eligible to attend

Karen Read (Chair) 9 9

Alison Bohannan 8 9

Steven de Kruijff 9 9

Neil Hatherly 6 9

Myles Johnston 8 9

George Fortune 4 7

Brett Peterson 2 2

The Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee has 
observed the terms of its charter and has had due regard 
for Queensland Treasury’s Audit Committee Guidelines. 
During 2016–17, the committee’s achievements included 
the three year internal audit program, ensuring compliance 
with legislation and good corporate governance.

Disclosure of directors’ remuneration

Remuneration of the directors is made in accordance with 
current Queensland Government policy as set out in 
Remuneration Procedures for Part-Time Chairs and 
Members of Queensland Government Bodies.

During 2016–17, the total remuneration paid was $118,582. 
Related additional costs paid during the period (primarily 
for airfares and accommodation) totalled $32,402. 

Finance, Audit and Compliance Committee

The Board has established and maintains the Finance, 
Audit and Compliance Committee to assist in the 
execution of its responsibilities.

This committee is responsible for the review and oversight 
of MIWB’s financial performance and financial regulatory 
compliance, including the integrity of its accounting and 
financial reporting, monitoring compliance with applicable 
accounting standards, appointment of internal auditors, 
appointment of significant consultancies (e.g. legal advisors 
and insurance brokers) and overseeing the integrity of the 
accounting and financial reporting.

During 2016–17, this committee included Karen Read 
(Independent Chair), Alison Bohannan, Steven de Kruijff, 
Neil Hatherly, Myles Johnston, George Fortune (from 15 

September 2016) and Brett Peterson (until 15 September 
2016). MIWB Chief Executive Stephen Farrelly and 
Finance Manager Bruce Galbraith attended committee 
meetings by invitation.

The committee meets as required each financial year and 
assists the Board by ensuring financial reports are prepared 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
(including Australian equivalence to International 
Financial Reporting Standards) and other prescribed 
statutory requirements.

During 2016–17, the committee advised the Board on 
the efficacy of internal and external audit functions and 
preparation of a budget for the next financial year.

Attendances are shown in Table 6.
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Role and responsibilities of the Chief 
Executive

The Chief Executive, Stephen Farrelly, reports directly to 
the Board, is charged with and accountable for the overall 
performance and leadership of the organisation. 

The Chief Executive has the responsibility for the 
management of MIWB financial and non-financial 
performance, ensuring its conformity with statutory and 
accountability requirements. He implements the Board’s 
policy decisions, reflecting the Board’s approved strategy 
as reported in the Performance Plan, Corporate Plan and 
annual budget.

In addition, the Chief Executive is responsible for 
organisational leadership and maintaining effective 
business relationships with directors, customers, other 
stakeholders and interested parties.

Executive team

MIWB’s executive team is responsible for overall day-to-day 
operational and financial performance of the organisation 
and for participating in senior management groups and/
or committees.

The executive team comprises the following people: 

Stephen Farrelly  
Chief Executive, BE (Hons), RPEng, RPEQ (Civil), 
MAICD

Stephen joined MIWB as Chief Executive in October 
2014. Stephen has extensive background in the cost 
effective management of water assets accumulated from 
experience in a range of roles including engineering 
consultancy, engineering management, water authority 
planning, corporate risk management and senior 
management. Stephen has a thorough understanding of 
MIWB’s infrastructure, as well as the relevant water 
supply and governance matters pertinent to MIWB’s 

Organisational structure of MIWB

Administration

Accounting

Accounts  
Payable

Water  
Quality

Business Risk 
Improvement

Asset 
Management

Project 
Engineering

Operations Manager

Chief Executive

Board

R48 Reserve 
Officers

Operations & 
Maintenance

Community & 
Environment

Finance Manager

Filter Plant 
Operators
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operational needs. Stephen has a keen focus on aligning 
organisational effort and investment to achieve customer 
outcomes.

Bruce Galbraith  
Finance Manager, BMS, GradDipACG, CA, FGIA, FCIS

Bruce joined MIWB in February 2009 as Finance Manager 
and Board Secretary. Since that time he has facilitated 
significant changes to the overall management of current 
MIWB financial processes and procedures. Bruce brings 
to the position more than 30 years’ experience in senior 
commercial and financial management roles in a wide 
range of industries including utilities, multinational fast 
moving goods and not-for-profit organisations. 

Adam Jensen  
Operations Manager, BE (Mech), MIEAust

Adam joined MIWB in February 2016 bringing with him 
over 13 years’ engineering experience spanning the mining, 
small business and public sectors. His experience includes 
both project management and maintenance management 
roles, positioning him well to manage MIWB’s operational 
requirements. Adam brings a strong focus on effective safety 
management practice and culture.

Reporting requirements

MIWB is required to regularly review and report on a range 
of statutory and regulatory obligations, both as a water 
authority and as a government business entity.

The documents produced include:

• Annual Report

• Quarterly Reports

• Financial Statements

•  Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and 
Planning (DILGP) monthly capital reports

• Corporate Plan

• Performance Plan

•  State Infrastructure Plan and Regional Action Plan 
update

• Water Service Provider Annual Performance Report

•  s185 Right to Information and Information Privacy 
annual response

•  Special Approval No SA05/97 Annual Report to the 
Regulator (Electricity Act 1994)

•  Water Supply and Sewerage Services Survey (Census 
and Statistics Act 1905)

•  revised and updated Drinking Water Quality 
Management Plan

• DWQMP Annual Report

•  event-based water quality reports which are collated 
and provided to DEWS.

MIWB was compliant with its reporting responsibilities 
during 2016–17, which included providing the Minister 
with a summary of information and events for the year; 
forecasts for the year ahead; and assessments of status and 
performance to date. MIWB also provided DEWS with 
financial and non-financial performance reports for each 
quarter according to the required timetable and water 
quality event investigation reports.

Corrections to previous annual report

MIWB advises that there are no corrections to be notified 
from the previous annual report. 

Information systems and recordkeeping

MIWB’s information systems support effective corporate 
governance and the delivery of accurate information for 
decision-making. MIWB maintains a secure and accurate 
recordkeeping system which satisfies the accountability 
requirements of the Public Records Act 2002.

To support compliance with the Queensland Government’s 
Information Standard 40: Recordkeeping, MIWB records 
are secure from unauthorised access, damage and misuse. 
An appropriate back-up system is in place.

During the period MIWB implemented an upgrade of its 
electronic document management platform. Training 
sessions have been conducted to train staff in the information 
management and recordkeeping system.

Measurement and monitoring of MIWB’s financial 
performance are conducted using recognised accounting 
software. Detailed financial reports with analysis are 
prepared each month and presented to the Board at its 
monthly meetings.
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Risk management

MIWB has various risk management policies and 
procedures in place for local, portfolio and enterprise 
levels. During the period, MIWB implemented a fully 
revised, robust enterprise risk management framework 
defining the roles, responsibilities and processes for risk 
management from information gathering and action 
tracking through to Management and Board reporting. 

Audit functions

External auditor – financial

The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland 
public sector entities. The Queensland Audit Office 
engaged Altius Advisors to conduct MIWB’s 2016–17 
external audit. This is the third year Altius Advisors has 
conducted the audit. 

The external audit is normally conducted through visits to 
MIWB’s office, with the auditor working closely with the 
Chief Executive, Finance Manager and finance staff. The 
auditor’s report is considered by the Finance, Audit and 
Compliance Committee. A close-out interview is held 
between the auditors and the committee, and the 
committee makes recommendation to the Board 
concerning the adoption of the financial statements.

External auditor – non-financial

All audit recommendations of the Queensland Audit 
Office are considered by the Finance, Audit and 
Compliance Committee which ensures MIWB has due 
regard for these recommendations. 

During the period, MIWB’s business insurer undertook 
an on-site property risk assessment, which included an 
inspection of nominated sites as well as review of MIWB 
practices, systems and documentation.

Internal auditor 

In 2014-15, MIWB reappointed BDO Australia Ltd as its 
internal auditor for a three-year period. The Finance, Audit 
and Compliance Committee worked closely with the 
internal auditor to develop a recommended audit program 
for the next three years, and to ensure the effective, 
efficient and economic operation of the audit activity.

The internal auditor conducted the audit based on 
Australian Audit Standards and reported its findings and 
recommendations to the Board through the Finance, 
Audit and Compliance Committee. Areas reviewed 
included operations technology, purchasing and payroll 
procedures, and financial statement preparation and 
planning.
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The internal audit was conducted through visits to 
MIWB’s office, with the auditor working closely with 
management, operational staff and contractors. The audit 
process had due regard for Queensland Treasury’s Audit 
Committee Guidelines. 

Investments

MIWB is committed to investments that conform to 
government prudential standards. It continually reviews 
its infrastructure investment strategy and prioritises 
projects that will enhance the reliability and quality of 
water supplied to customers.

As at 30 June 2017, MIWB’s investments (property, plant 
and equipment) were $132.6 million.  

Public interest disclosures

No public interest disclosures were received by MIWB from 
1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 under the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2010.

Right to information

As a statutory authority, MIWB supports the right of access 
to government information to promote transparency, 
openness and accountability, and will provide this access 
unless it is commercial-in-confidence or contrary to the 
public interest to release such information. 

MIWB did not process any RTI application between 1 July 
2016 and 30 June 2017 and was not processing any RTI 
applications at the end of the reporting period. 

Any enquiries about obtaining information held by MIWB 
should be made by contacting (07) 4740 1000 or 
emailing info@mountisawater.qld.gov.au.

Right to Information correspondence has been placed on 
the MIWB website at www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au 
under the ‘Open Data’ tab.

Open data

A number of annual reporting requirements are addressed 
through publication of information through the 
Queensland Government Open Data website (https://
data.qld.gov.au) in lieu of inclusion in the annual report.

The following information requirements are reported online:

• consultancies

• overseas travel

MIWB is committed to the Queensland Government’s 
Open Data strategy and has adopted the government’s 
strategy, policy and principles to ensure all relevant data is 
published in the appropriate manner. Data on additional 
MIWB activities is available at www.mountisawater.qld.
gov.au/opendata

Moving forward

In 2017-18, MIWB will continue good corporate 
governance to achieve even better business performance 
through:

• regular and effective Board meetings

•  high standards of corporate ethics and social 
responsibility

•  review of all operational activities against the adopted 
strategic direction

•  continued transparent business practices and 
decision-making

•  integrity of operating systems (including sound risk 
management and internal audit programs)

•  good communication and sensible alignment with 
customers

•  maintenance of the fully transparent water charges 
framework and model and

• commitment to preserving MIWB’s business and value.
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Staff profile

MIWB has a specialised workforce dedicated to the discreet 
aspects of its business operations. Staff levels reflect the 
requirements of the 2016–17 Performance Plan and 
forecast capital expenditure.

At 30 June 2017, MIWB’s workforce comprised 14.3 Full 
Time Equivalent (FTE) employees, 1 FTE employee less 
than at 30 June 2016. This figure does not include three 
on-going vacancies within the Board approved establishment 
and two full-time contractors on term engagements. Staff 
members were engaged in financial reporting, financial 
management, administration, project and contract 
management, engineering, water quality monitoring and 
analysis as well as operations and maintenance management.  

Developing our people

MIWB strives to have a skilled, capable and committed 
workforce and supports training and development 
activities which deliver business and personal 
development outcomes and enable a better organisational 
performance.

MIWB’s philosophy is that staff should take pride and 
receive satisfaction from delivering value to customers by 
achieving work goals. 

During 2016–17, MIWB invested in a broad range of 
training activities which included the following courses:

•  Work Health and Safety requirements and 
responsibilities

A capable and accountable team is a critical success factor for the achievement of MIWB’s vision. We seek to 
empower our people to demonstrate our corporate values – fostering a customer first culture in which the status 
quo is challenged and feedback and continuous improvement are embraced.

People
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• MIWB Area Safety Inductions

•  Generic Construction Induction – Construction 
(White Card)

• Apply First Aid (Senior First Aid)

• Perform CPR

• Electrical Arc Flash Safety

• Information Privacy Act

• Right to Information Act

• Contract Management

•  Diploma of Risk Management and Business 
Continuity

Public sector ethics

MIWB periodically reviews its Board and staff Codes of 
Conduct (Codes) to ensure they are in line with the 
current ethics, principles and values of the Public Sector 
Ethics Act 1994. 

MIWB is committed to ongoing education and continual 
review of processes and procedures to ensure both staff 
and management have proper regard for the Codes and 
for appropriate behaviours. 

Through a comprehensive induction program and continual 
discussions, directors and senior officers are aware of their 
rights and obligations in relation to contraventions of the 
approved Codes of Conduct. MIWB initiated a revamp 
of the staff Codes of Conduct in the reporting period. 

Workforce planning, attraction and 
retention

MIWB’s future workforce needs are continually monitored 
to ensure strategies are in place to align workforce planning 
with service delivery.

MIWB recognises the potential difficulties remote 
communities face in attracting and retaining appropriately 
skilled technical, engineering and commercial staff who 
can contribute to highly specialised operations. The transient 
nature of the Mount Isa population means, from time to 
time, MIWB experiences periods of high turnover. This 
period, MIWB experienced a relatively stable workforce, 
with retention exceeding 90 per cent.

Over the period MIWB has had some success in recruiting 
highly qualified locals and returning residents with 
experience well suited to the Board’s strategy. 

Key workforce policies

Key MIWB workforce policies, in addition to the Codes of 
Conduct (refer Public sector ethics section), approved by the 
Board and actively promoted inside the organisation are:

• Corrupt Conduct and Fraud Policy

• Alcohol and Drugs Policy

• Anti-Discrimination Policy

• Corporate Procurement Policy and Procedures

• Sexual and Workplace Harassment Policy

• Work Health and Safety Policy

• Workplace Injury Rehabilitation Policy.

Ongoing refinements to workforce policies took place 
throughout the year to ensure they were appropriate and 
reflected the needs of staff and management. 

Initiatives for women

MIWB is an equal opportunity organisation which 
promotes and encourages career development of all staff. 
As at 30 June 2017, MIWB staff members comprised six 
women and nine men. During the period, all new 
recruitments to permanent positions were women.

Supporting carers

MIWB recognises carers and the important contribution 
they make to the people they care for and to the community 
generally. MIWB has provided a copy of the Carers Charter, 
as set out in the Schedule to the Carers (Recognition) Act 
2008, to all staff.

During 2016–17, MIWB did not have a ‘carer’, as 
defined by the Act, on staff. 

Health and safety

MIWB is committed to complying with Queensland’s 
Work Health and Safety Act 2011 and Work Health and 
Safety Regulations 2011. MIWB is committed to 
facilitating zero harm and safety is identified as a key 
success factor for the organisation.
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MIWB continues to invest significant effort to ensure the 
effectiveness and relevance of its Safety Management Plan 
and Procedures within a framework of continuous 
improvement. During 2016–17 MIWB recorded a total 
of one lost time injury to employees and contractors. 
MIWB also recorded one reportable near miss. All 
incidents are assessed as improvement opportunities that 
are individually investigated for what can be learned. 
Safety initiatives serve to engage and include all parties 
carrying out activities on MIWB sites in a positive safety 
culture, which underpins a safe workplace for all.

Moving forward

During 2017-18, MIWB will continue to provide a healthy 
and safe work environment for employees and contractors, 
in a framework of continuous improvement. It will also 
increase the core competencies of the organisation and 
staff by developing internal skills and resources. 

MIWB will continue to strive for zero harm in a number 
of ways including:

•  monitoring compliance with all statutory obligations 
relevant to MIWB operations

•  reviewing and updating MIWB policies and 
procedures to ensure they address MIWB’s evolving 
business needs

•  ensuring all staff are trained adequately to carry out 
their roles 

•  reporting on and monitoring health and safety 
statistics and taking necessary action 

•  conducting periodic safety audits in the field 
including using independent specialists and

•  monitoring MIWB sites to ensure they are a safe 
workplace for all parties entering site.
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MIWB has identified a number of financial performance objectives in its Corporate and Performance Plans, which are 
consistent with a commercially-oriented government business. MIWB’s performance against these objectives is shown in 
Table 7.

Table 7          Financial performance during 2016–17

Performance Measures Target 
30 June 2017

Actual Outcomes  
30 June 2017

Financial results

Profitability Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) $2.4m $4.9m

Net profit margin ≥ 7.4% 14.5%

Financial leverage Debt to equity ratio 2.0% 2.0%

Liquidity Current ratio ≥ 4.1 3.17

Debt recovery Average debt collection period ≤ 30.0 days 25.7 days

Return to shareholder Dividend paid (1) $1.98m $2.45m

Return to shareholder Dividend payable (2) $2.24m $2.63m

(1) Dividend paid on 2015–16 operations (paid in the 2016–17 year)
(2) Dividend from 2016–17 operations (payable in the 2017–18 year)

To achieve our vision of being a respected leader in regional water distribution and treatment, MIWB seeks to 
create and deliver value to our stakeholders. We will efficiently and effectively deliver and maintain bulk water 
infrastructure which meets customers’ individual needs. Implementing our commercial imperative, MIWB’s 
capital expenditure must be prudent and recoverable; our operational expenditure must be cost effective; our 
actions transparent.

Financial management
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Highlights for 2016–17

MIWB achieved a year of sound financial performance for 
the benefits of its stakeholders. Key achievements included:

•  realising a profit from continuing operations after 
income tax of $3.3 million

•  returning a dividend (paid) of $2.4 million to 
MIWB’s owner, the Queensland Government, and  
recommending a dividend payable for 2016–17 of 
$2.6 million. 

Financial performance

The net profit from ordinary activities after income tax 
equivalents expense for 2016–17 is $3.3 million compared 
with $3.1 million in 2015–16.

Operating costs were higher than budget. This was mainly 
due to the recognition of a constructive liability with 
respect to disputed power charges.

A review of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
associated notes (refer page 38) shows 2016–17 revenue 
increased by $2.1 million compared with 2015–16. The 

increase is principally the result of the flow-on effect of 
higher electricity prices being passed on to customers.

All cost centres were under budget.

A comparison of actual expenditures with budget 
allocations is shown in Table 8.

The Statement of Financial Position (refer page 39) shows 
an increase of $1.8 million as a result of increased non-
current assets during the year due to asset completion.

The Statement of Cash Flows (refer page 41) shows an 
increase of $0.8 million as a result of lower than expected 
asset acquisitions.

Moving forward 

Continued focus on financial performance in 2017–18 
will ensure that customer outcomes are the driver for all 
capital expenditures, which are only undertaken on a 
sound financial basis. All capital is expected to be 
financed through internal cash flow and cash reserves 
during 2017–18, supplemented with borrowings for a 
proposed major project.

Table 8   Actual versus budget financial results 2016–17

Actual 2016-17 
$

Budget 2016-17 
$

Change  
%

Income 22,535,749 20,731,000 8.7% (1)

 

Corporate expenses 1,080,135 1,433,500 (24.7%)

Depreciation 4,871,585 4,929,000 (1.2%)

Direct operating expenses 9,810,216 8,587,700 14.2% (1)

Payroll expenses 1,647,986 1,663,000 (0.9%)

R48 expenses 431,378 585,300 (26.3%)

Total expenses 17,841,300 17,198,500 3.7%

Net profit after tax 3,281,950 2,472,750 32.7%

(1)  During 2016-17 MIWB took to account invoiced electricity costs which are in dispute, increasing both operating costs and charges due 
from customers (charged at cost)
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General information

These financial statements cover the Mount Isa Water 
Board and its controlled entities. 

The Mount Isa Water Board is a statutory body 
constituted under the Water Act 2000 as a Category 1 
Water Authority and registered service provider under the 
Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act.

MIWB is a statutory authority ultimately owned by the 
State of Queensland.

The head office and principal place of business of MIWB is:

31 Carbonate Street 
Mount Isa QLD 4825

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD 
A.B.N. 97 761 284 021

A description of the nature of MIWB’s operations and its 
principal activities is included in the annual report.

For information in relation to MIWB’s financial 
statements please call (07) 4740 1000, email  
info@mountisawater.qld.gov.au or visit the Board’s 
internet site www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au. 

Amounts shown in the financial statements may not add 
to the correct sub totals or totals due to rounding.
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2017 2016

Note $ $

2

2a 21,620,297 19,495,980

347,288 396,077

2b 537,994 485,677

22,505,579 20,377,734

30,169 39,423

TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 22,535,749 20,417,158

3

3a (1,756,154) (1,781,612)

3c (10,606,856) (8,023,776)

6 (4,871,585) (5,608,253)

(175,327) (200,034)

(431,378) (411,733)

(17,841,301) (16,025,409)

4,694,448 4,391,749

                              

4 (1,412,498) (1,329,013)

3,281,950 3,062,736

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
Operating Result:

11 1,105,049 26,281,560

1,105,049 26,281,560

4,386,999 29,344,295

Revenue                                                                          

Water charges

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET 

OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Income tax expense

Increase (decrease) on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment

OPERATING RESULTS FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAX

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Interest

Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS      

Depreciation and amortisation

Supplies and services

Other expenses

Employee expenses

Finance/borrowing costs

OPERATING RESULTS FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS AFTER INCOME TAX

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

1

Statement of Comprehensive Income
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2017 2016

$ $

Note
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 20,984,917 20,152,068
Receivables 4,739,477 2,654,978
Other current assets 7,959 8,849
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 25,732,353 22,815,895

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 6 132,577,368 130,908,771
Receivables - 117,324
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 132,577,368 131,026,095
TOTAL ASSETS 158,309,721 153,841,990

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 7 6,928,733 3,835,090
Accrued employee benefits 77,687 65,247
Other financial liabilities 8 818,253 753,411
Tax liabilities 285,048 868,866
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,109,721 5,522,613

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued employee benefits 58,796 39,237
Other financial liabilities 8 1,722,748 2,519,097
Deferred tax liabilities 9 19,393,808 19,296,499
Other liabilities 10 1,758,504 959,839
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 22,933,856 22,814,672

TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,043,577 28,337,286

NET ASSETS 127,266,144 125,504,704

EQUITY

Contributed equity 30,430,390 30,430,390
Accumulated surplus 36,307,943 35,651,552
Asset revaluation surplus 11 60,527,811 59,422,762
TOTAL EQUITY 127,266,144 125,504,704

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

2

Statement of Financial Position
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Accumulated  Asset  Total 

Note  Surplus Revaluation

 Surplus

 $  $  $ 

Note 11

35,051,427 33,141,202 98,623,019

3,062,736                    -   3,062,736

11                      -   26,281,560 26,281,560

3,062,736 26,281,560                               -   29,344,296

- Dividend accrued (2,450,189) (2,450,189)
(12,422)                    -   (12,422)

35,651,552 59,422,762 30,430,390 125,504,704

35,651,552 59,422,762 125,504,704

11                      -   1,105,049 1,105,049

3,281,950 1,105,049 4,386,999

(2,625,560)                    -   (2,625,560)
                     -                      -   -

36,307,943 60,527,811 30,430,390 127,266,144

- Dividends paid                                         -   

                                        -   - Dividends accrued

Other comprehensive 

income 

Transactions with owners

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Balance at 1 July 2015

Total comprehensive 

income for the period

                                        -   

                                        -   

Operating result from 

continuing operations 

                                        -   

                                        -   

3,281,950

                                        -   

Total comprehensive 

income for the period

Balance at 1 July 2016

Contributed

Equity

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

30,430,390

                   -   

Other comprehensive 

income 

Balance at 30 June 2017

- Increase/(Decrease) on 

revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment

3,281,950

                                        -   

Balance at 30 June 2016

$

30,430,390

- Increase/(Decrease) on 

revaluation of property, 

plant and equipment

Operating result from 

continuing operations 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Transactions with owners

- Dividends paid

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

3

Statement of Changes in Equity
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2017 2016

Note $ $

20,628,871 18,624,550

353,471 353,770
Other Income 531,931 479,615

1,322,740 981,024

57,108 51,133

(1,724,155) (1,792,736)

(7,687,694) (7,311,357)

(175,327) (200,034)

(431,378) (411,733)

(1,500,985) (1,056,809)

(56,068) (52,565)

(2,372,598) (1,307,780)

12 8,945,916 8,357,078

30,169 39,423

(4,961,541) (3,148,873)

(4,931,372) (3,109,450)

(731,505) (697,576)

(2,450,190) (1,434,422)

(3,181,695) (2,131,998)

832,849 3,115,630

20,152,068 17,036,438

5 20,984,917 20,152,068

Outflows:

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

GST Input Tax Credits from ATO

GST remitted to ATO

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Finance/borrowing costs

GST received from customers

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Interest received

Employee expenses

Outflows:

Receipts from customers

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 

Other expenses

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Outflows:

Income taxes paid

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid

Inflows:

GST paid to suppliers

Inflows:

Supplies and services

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Sale of property, plant and equipment

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Payments for property, plant and equipment

4

Statement of Cash Flows
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 2: Income from Continuing Operations

Note 3: Expenses from Continuing Operations

Note 4: Income Tax Expense

Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 6: Property Plant & Equipment

Note 7: Payables

Note 8: Other Financial Liabilities

Note 9: Current and Deferred Tax

Note 10: Other Liabilities

Note 11: Asset Revaluation Surplus

Note 12: Cashflow Information

Note 13: Financial Instruments

Note 14: Contingencies

Note 15: Budget vs Actual Comparison

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Objectives and Principal Activities of MIWB

5

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

Objectives and Principal Activities of MIWB

1

(a)          

(b)          

(c)          

(d)          

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Taxation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Section 42 of the Financial and Performance

Management Standard 2009 . The financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements that have

been prepared on an accrual basis, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. By

virtue of being prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the financial statements comply

with International Financial Reporting Standards. All applicable accounting standards and policies have been

consistently applied unless otherwise stated. The financial statements comply with Queensland Treasury’s

Minimum Reporting Requirements for the period ending 30 June 2017, and other authoritative pronouncements

to the extent they are considered relevant.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MIWB is a “for profit” entity for the purposes of financial reporting.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of equivalent income taxes payable or recoverable in

respect of the taxable profit or loss for the period. It is calculated using taxation rates and taxation laws that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax for the current and prior periods

is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable). Current tax assets and

liabilities for the current and prior period are measured at the amount expected to be received from or paid to

the Queensland Treasury based on the current period’s taxable income.

Grants and Contributions

Statement of Compliance

Except where stated, the historical cost convention is used. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Mount Isa Water Board ('MIWB') is a statutory body constituted under the Water Act 2000 and is a

Category 1 Water Authority and registered service provider under the Water Supply (Safety & Reliability) Act

2008 (QLD) . MIWB is domiciled in Australia. The address of MIWB's principal place of business is 31

Carbonate Street, Mount Isa, Queensland. MIWB is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in the supply of

bulk water.

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all

attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as

income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of

the related asset.

MIWB is subject to the National Tax Equivalents Regime (NTER).

Revenue Recognition

Current Income Tax Equivalents (Current Tax)

Revenues from the sale of water and electricity are recognised upon delivery to the customer. All revenue is

stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST).

6
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements

  

(e)

(f)

(g)

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, at bank, money market

investments readily convertible to cash i.e. with a term to maturity less than 3 months and bank overdrafts.

Cash assets includes all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at 30 June 2017.

Deferred tax equivalents are accounted for using the comprehensive statement of financial position liability

method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding tax base of those items.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible

temporary differences or unused tax losses and offsets can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to the income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority and MIWB intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Current and Deferred Income Tax Equivalents for the Period

Acquisition of Assets

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or delivery, with settlement being generally

required within thirty (30) days from the invoice date. The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically

with provision being made for impairment. Specific provision is made for any doubtful accounts at 30 June

2017.  All known bad debts were written off as of 30 June 2017. 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset and intangible asset acquisitions.

Cost is determined as the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all

other costs incurred in getting the asset ready for use, including architects' fees and engineering design

charges. However, any training costs are expensed as incurred. 

Current and deferred tax equivalents are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when it

relates to items credited or debited to other comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of MIWB and are

recognized at their assessed values. Terms are a maximum of three (3) months, no interest is charged and

generally no security obtained.

Receivables

Taxation (cont.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred Income Tax Equivalents (Deferred Tax)

7
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(h)

$

                           1 

                  10,000 

                  10,000 

                    5,000 

(i)

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated

useful lives of the improvements or the term of the lease, which ever is shorter.

Buildings

For each class of depreciable asset the following useful lives are used:

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

3-20

Assets under construction (work-in-progress) are not depreciated until they reach service delivery capacity.

Service delivery capacity relates to when construction is complete and the asset is first put to use or is installed

ready for use in accordance with its intended application. These assets are then reclassified to the relevant

classes with property, plant and equipment.

Class of Fixed Asset

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. Land improvements undertaken by MIWB are

included with buildings.

Infrastructure - Pipeline

Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost or revalued

amount of each asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to MIWB.

15-62

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Buildings 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following

thresholds are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition:

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised

and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to MIWB.

Infrastructure

Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these

components are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated

accordingly.

Land

MIWB has a comprehensive annual maintenance program for its infrastructure assets. Expenditure is only

capitalised if it increases the service potential or useful life of the existing asset. Maintenance expenditure that

merely restores original service potential (arising from ordinary wear and tear etc) is expensed.

15-60

Infrastructure - Other 2-110

Life (Years) 
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(j)

(k)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

An impairment loss is recognised immediately as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the

impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus to the extent available.

The fair values reported by MIWB are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of

available and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs (refer to Note 1(l)).

Materiality concepts (according to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements ) 

are considered in determining whether the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of an

asset is material (in which case revaluation is warranted).

Revaluation of Non-Current Physical Assets

Property, plant and equipment classes measured at fair value (refer above) are revalued on an annual basis

either by appraisals undertaken by an independent professional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of

appropriate and relevant indices. For financial reporting purposes, the revaluation process is managed by the

Finance Manager, who determines the specific revaluation practices and procedures. The Finance, Audit and

Compliance Committee oversees the revaluation processes that are undertaken each year, and reports to the

MIWB Board regarding the outcomes of, and recommendations arising from, each annual review.

When an asset is revalued using either a market or income valuation approach, any accumulated impairment

losses at that date are eliminated against the gross amount of the asset prior to restating for the revaluation.

Land, buildings and infrastructure assets are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, 

Plant and Equipment, AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury's Non-Current Asset

Accounting Policies for the Queensland Public Sector . These assets are reported at their revalued amounts,

being the fair value at the date of valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses where applicable. In respect of these asset classes, the cost of the items acquired during the financial

year has been judged by management of MIWB to materially represent their fair value. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised

estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Plant and equipment is measured at cost in accordance with the Non-Current Asset Policies. 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.

Revaluations using independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once

every five years. However, if a particular asset class experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value,

that class is subject to specific appraisal in the reporting period, where practicable, regardless of the timing of

the last specific appraisal. This is arranged by the Finance Manager after consultation with the Finance, Audit

and Compliance Committee.

All non-current physical assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of

possible impairment exists, MIWB determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's 

carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss.

The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and

value in use.

Impairment of Non-Current Assets

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

9
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Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of

the appropriate class in equity, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement of the same asset

previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an

expense, to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to the same asset.

Infrastructure Revaluations

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Revaluation of Non-Current Physical Assets (cont.)

On revaluation:

! for assets revalued using a cost valuation approach (e.g. depreciated replacement cost) - accumulated

depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross amount and carrying amount, after taking

into account accumulated impairment losses. This is generally referred to as the 'gross method; and

! for assets revalued using a market or income-based valuation approach - accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses are eliminated against the gross amount of the asset prior to restating for

valuation. This is generally referred to as the 'net method'.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Where assets have not been specifically appraised in the reporting period, their previous valuations are

materially kept up-to-date via the application of a relevant index. MIWB ensures that the application of the index

results in a valid estimation of the assets' fair values at reporting date. The professional valuer recommended

the use of the Office of Economic and Statistical Research (OESR) Asset Revaluation Index: Engineering

Construction, Queensland. This index is publicly available and derived from ABS statistics. The index used is

also tested for reasonableness by comparing the results of indexation to assets that have been valued by an

independent professional valuer or internal expert, and analysing the trend of changes in values over time.

Through this process, which is undertaken from time to time, management assesses and confirms the relevance 

and suitability of the index provided by the professional valuer based on MIWB's own particular circumstances.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is re-stated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of

the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. Separately identified components of assets

are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.  

On revaluation, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross

carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the valued amount of the asset.  

Building Revaluations

10
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(l)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

* level 1 - represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for

identical assets and liabilities;

* level 3 - represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from unobservable inputs.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

More specific fair value information about MIWB's Property, Plant and Equipment is outlined in Note 6.

* level 2 - represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from inputs (other than quoted

prices included within level 1) that are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

All assets and liabilities of MIWB for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the following fair value hierarchy, based on the data and assumptions used in the most

recent specific appraisal:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit

price) regardless of whether that price is directly derived from observable inputs or estimated using another

valuation technique.

Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities

being valued. Observable inputs used by MIWB include, but are not limited to, published sales data for land and

general office buildings.

None of MIWB's valuations of assets or liabilities are eligible for categorisation into level 1 of the fair value

hierarchy. There were no transfers of assets between fair value hierarchy levels during the period.

Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgements that are not available publicly, but are relevant to

the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Significant unobservable inputs used by MIWB include,

but are not limited to, subjective adjustments made to observable data to take into account of the characteristics

of MIWB assets/liabilities, internal records of recent construction costs (and/or estimates of such costs) for

assets' characteristics/functionality, and assessments of physical condition and remaining useful life.

Unobservable inputs are used to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not

available for similar assets/liabilities.

11
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(m)

Annual Leave

Long Service Leave

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave and long service leave are regarded as employee

benefits.

Wages, Salaries and Personal Leave

Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at

the current salary rates.

MIWB has estimated the liability for long service leave at 30 June 2017. A liability for long service leave is

measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided

by employees up to the reporting date. The liability has been included in the financial statements as at 30 June

2017.

Superannuation

Employer superannuation contributions are made by MIWB to employee superannuation funds and are charged

as expenses when they are incurred.

Annual leave is expected to be taken within twelve months. Annual leave owing at 30 June 2017 is recognised

at undiscounted values.

Prior history indicates that on average, personal leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement 

accrued. This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated 

entitlements will be used by employees and no liability for unused personal leave entitlements is recognised.

As personal leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Payroll Tax and Worker's Compensation Insurance are a consequence of employing employees, but are not

counted in an employee's total remuneration package. They are not employee benefits and are recognised

separately as employee related expenses.

Key Management Personnel and Remuneration

Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with FRR3C of the

Financial Reporting Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury.

Refer to note 3(b) for the disclosures on key management personnel and remuneration.

As MIWB expects such liabilities to be wholly settled within twelve months of reporting date, the liabilities are 

recognised at undiscounted amounts.

Employee Benefits

12
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(n)

"

"

(o)

(p)

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the

ATO.

When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the ATO, in

which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset, or as part of an

item of expense. 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Contingencies - note 14

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment – note 6

Accounting Estimates and Judgments

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Trade creditors are recognised when goods are received or services performed and are measured at the

agreed purchase/contract price, net of applicable trade and other discounts. Usually payment is settled within

thirty (30) days, the amounts owing are unsecured. The carrying amount at 30 June 2017 approximates fair

value.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables

in the Statement of Financial Position.

Receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions that have a potentially significant effect are outlined in the following financial

statement notes:

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical

accounting estimates, assumptions, and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates,

judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except for:

Payables

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash

flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is

classified as part of operating cash flows.

13
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(q)          

(r)            

(s)        

(t)

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments held

by MIWB are included in note 13.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows:

MIWB’s non-current physical assets and other risks are insured through Willis Australia Limited Insurance

Brokers, premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. In addition, MIWB pays premiums to WorkCover

Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Finance Costs

MIWB does not enter into transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. MIWB holds no financial

assets classified at fair value through profit and loss or as available for sale.

Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the assets. All other finance costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Insurance

Financial Instruments

Recognition

Finance costs include interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings.

Issuance of Financial Statements

Financial instruments are initially recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when MIWB becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

- Receivables - held at amortised cost

- Payables - held at amortised cost

Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities to the extent that MIWB has an unconditional right to defer

settlement until at least twelve months after reporting date.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

- Borrowings - held at amortised cost

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, plus any transaction costs directly attributable, then

subsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate

that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of a financial

instrument (or, when appropriate, a shorter period) to the net carrying amount of that instrument.

- Held to maturity investment - held at amortised cost

Classification

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Chair at the date of signing the Management 

Certificate.

14

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements



MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD  2016-17 ANNUAL REPORT52

(u)

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued or amended and applicable for the first time in

the 2016-17 financial year that have an effect on MIWB have been implemented and applied accordingly. Also,

MIWB has not voluntarily changed any of its accounting policies, nor has it adopted any Australian Accounting

Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective for the 2016-2017 period. MIWB

will apply these standards and interpretations in accordance with their respective commencement dates.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the expected impacts of new or amended Australian

Accounting Standards issued but with future effective dates are as set out below.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)

A range of new disclosures will also be required by AASB15 in respect of MIWB's revenue.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New and Revised Accounting Standards

This standard will first apply to MIWB from its financial statements for 2018-19 and contains much more

detailed requirements for the accounting for revenue from contracts with customers. Depending on the

respective contractual terms, the new requirements may potentially result in a change to the timing of revenue

from sales of MIWB's goods and services, such that some revenue may need to be deferred to a later reporting

period to the extent that MIWB has received cash but has not met its associated performance obligations (such

amounts would be reported as a liability in the meantime). MIWB is yet to complete its analysis of existing

arrangements for sale of its goods and services and the impact, if any, on revenue recognition has not yet been

determined.

These standards will first apply to MIWB from its financial statements for 2018-19. The main impacts of these

standards on MIWB are that they will change the requirements for the classification, measurement, impairment

and disclosures associated with MIWB's financial assets. AASB 9 will introduce different criteria for whether

financial assets can be measured at amortised cost or fair value.

AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to

AASB 107

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

From reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2017, this standard will require additional disclosure that

enables users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. These

disclosures will include both cash flows and non-cash changes between the opening and closing balance of the

relevant liabilities and be disclosed by way of a reconciliation in the notes to the statement of cash flows.
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(v)

(w)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other Presentation Matters

Commercialisation

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Comparatives - Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures

in the current reporting period.

MIWB will not need to restate comparative figures for financial instruments on adopting AASB 9 as from 2018-

19. However, changed disclosure requirements will apply from that time. A number of one-off disclosures will be

required in the 2018-19 financial statements to explain the impact of adopting AASB 9. Assuming no change in

the types of financial instruments that MIWB enters into, the most likely ongoing disclosure impacts are

expected to relate to the credit risk of financial assets subject to impairment.

Current/Non-Current Classification - Assets and liabilities are classified as either 'current' or 'non-current' in the

Statement of Financial Position and associated notes. Assets are classified as 'current' where their carrying

amount is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date. Liabilities are classified as 'current'

when they are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date, or MIWB does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months after the reporting date. All other assets and liabilities

are classified as 'non-current'.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

New and Revised Accounting Standards (cont.)

MIWB has commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assets against the new AASB 9

classification and measurement requirements. However, as the classification of financial assets at the date of

initial application of AASB 9 will depend on the facts and circumstances existing at that date, MIWB's

conclusions will not be confirmed until closer to that time. At this stage, and assuming no change in the types of

transactions MIWB enters into, it is expected that MIWB’s financial assets will meet the criteria in AASB 9 to

continue to be measured at amortised cost.

Currency and Rounding - Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been

rounded to the nearest dollar.

Pursuant to the Water Act 2000 , MIWB was commercialised on 1 October 2000. Commercialisation had a

significant impact on MIWB, principally through the implementation of National Competition Policy Reforms. 

Another impact of AASB 9 relates to calculating impairment losses for MIWB's receivables. Assuming no

substantial change in the nature of MIWB's receivables, as they don't include a significant financing component,

impairment losses will be determined according to the amount of lifetime expected credit losses. On initial

adoption of AASB 9, MIWB will need to determine the expected credit losses for its receivables by comparing

the credit risk at that time to the credit risk that existed when those receivables were initially recognised.
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2017 2016

$ $

2

2a

9,731,765 8,209,861

9,276,453 8,717,076

2,607,070 2,565,500

5,010 3,543

21,620,297 19,495,980

2b
523,142 475,348

14,852 10,329

537,994 485,677

3

3a

1,329,036 1,445,550

17,979 (10,937)

19,559 (187)
Employee housing allowance * 37,255 38,666

108,167 105,525

172,343 146,444

10,566 10,546

61,249 46,006

1,756,154 1,781,612

14.3 15.3

Other

Expenses from Continuing Operations

Long service leave expense*

Other Revenue

Employee Related Expenses

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Board member fees

Wages and salaries

Income from Continuing Operations

Employer’s superannuation contributions*

Payroll tax*

Worker’s compensation premium*

Incitec Pivot Ltd

The number of employees including both full-time employees

and part-time employees measured on a full-time equivalent

basis is:

Annual leave expense*

Miscellaneous income

Glencore Mount Isa Mines Ltd

Revenue from power sales

Water Charges

Employee Expenses

Mount Isa City Council

* Refer to Note 1(m)
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3b

15/09/2016

Key executive management personnel

Position Responsibilities
Current Incumbents

Contract classification Date appointed to 

Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is

responsible for the overall

financial and operational

performance and day-to-day

management of MIWB

Individual Employment 

Contract
30/09/2014

Finance Manager/Board 

Secretary

The Finance Manager/Board

Secretary is responsible for

managing all aspects of

corporate accounting, financial

management, and business

services to ensure good

governance of, and to support

efficient operations across all

functions of MIWB

Individual Employment 

Contract
12/02/2009

Operations Manager

The Operations Manager is

responsible for the overall

management of the operations

and maintenance contractor,

the capital works program,

health and safety, water quality

and operations at R48 Reserve

Former Engineering 

Manager resigned 

1/04/2016                  

New Operations 

Manager appointed 

22/02/2016

Date initially appointed 

to position (Date 

appointment ceased)

Independent Chair of 

Finance, Audit and 

Compliance Committee - 

Ms Karen Read

Director - Mr Neil 

Hatherly
19/06/2014Responsible for governing the 

operations of MIWB and 

reporting and continuous 

disclosure to the Minister 

under the Water Act 2000.Director - Mr George 

Fortune

Appointment authority

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

The directors of MIWB and the key executive management personnel, described as KMP, that had authority

and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the agency during the 2016-17 and

during the 2015-16 financial year (for comparative purposes) were:

Position

23/07/2014

Responsible for chairing the 

Finance, Audit and 

Compliance Committee

Board Resolution

Director - Ms Alison 

Bohannan

a) Key executive management personnel and related party disclosures

Chairperson - Mr Steve 

de Kruijff

Responsibilities

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19/06/2014

Board of directors

Chairperson: 27 May 

2016
Water Act 2000  section 

600,601 and 604

Director - Mr Myles 

Johnston
Reappointed 4/02/2010

Director - Mr Brett 

Peterson

Water Act 2000  section 600 

and 604

19/06/2014 (14/09/2016)

Chairperson - Ms 

Rowena McNally

Chairperson: 

Reappointed 28 May 

2008 (26 May 2016)

Responsible for leading and 

directing the board, presiding 

at all meetings attended, for 

governing the operations of 

MIWB and reporting and 

continuous disclosure to the 

Minister under the Water Act 

2000.

Individual Employment 

Contract
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"

"

b) Remuneration

Remuneration policy for MIWB's key management personnel is set by MIWB. The remuneration and other

terms of employment for the key management personnel are specified in employment contracts. The contracts

provide for the provision of benefits including use of motor vehicles as a tool of trade.

For 2016-17 year, remuneration of key management personnel was reviewed by MIWB and recommended

changes were approved by MIWB.

Base - consisting of base salary, allowances and leave entitlements paid and provided for the

entire year or for that part of the year during which the employee occupied the specified position.

Amounts disclosed equal the amount expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

"    Short term employee benefits which include:

Remuneration packages for key management personnel comprise the following components:-

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

" Redundancy payments are not provided for within individual contracts of employment. Contracts of

employment provide only for notice periods or payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason

for termination.

"    Long term employee benefits include long service leave accrued.

"    Post employment benefits include superannuation contributions.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total fixed remuneration is calculated on a 'total cost' basis and includes the base and non-monetary benefits,

long term employee benefits and post employment benefits.

Non-monetary benefits - consisting of provision of vehicle as a tool of trade together with fringe

benefits tax applicable to the benefit.

Performance bonuses are not part of the Executive Remuneration package and no performance bonuses were

paid during 2015-16 or 2016-17.
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Key executive management personnel compensation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

b) Remuneration (cont.)
Board of directors' compensation

1 July 2016 - 30 June 2017

Base

Non-Monetary

Benefits

$ $ $ $ $ $

Chairperson - Mr Steve de Kruijff 38,138         -              -              3,814           -              41,952           

Director - Ms Alison Bohannan 20,100         -              -              2,009           -              22,109           

Director - Mr Neil Hatherly 20,100         -              -              2,009           -              22,109           

Director - Mr Myles Johnston 20,100         -              -              2,010           -              22,110           

Director - Mr Brett Peterson 4,575           -              -              458              -              5,033             

Independent Chair of Finance, 

Audit & Compliance Committee - 

Ms Karen Read 5,154           -              -              115              -              5,269             

Total Remuneration 108,167       -              -              10,415         -              118,582          

1 July 2015- 30 June 2016

Base

Non-Monetary

Benefits

$ $ $ $ $ $

Chairperson - Mr Steve de Kruijff 2,562           -              -              256              -              2,818             

Chairperson - Ms Rowena 

McNally 34,439         -              -              3,415           -              37,854           

Director - Ms Alison Bohannan 19,500         -              -              1,950           -              21,450           

Director - Mr Neil Hatherly 19,500         -              -              1,950           -              21,450           

Director - Mr Myles Johnston 19,500         -              -              1,950           -              21,450           

Director - Mr Brett Peterson 5,025           -              -              503              -              5,528             

Independent Chair of Finance, 

Audit & Compliance Committee - 

Ms Karen Read 5,000           -              -              115              -              5,115             

Total Remuneration 105,526       -              -              10,139         -              115,665          

Total 

Remuneration

Position

Short Term Employee

Long Term 

Employee 

Benefits

Post 

Employment 

Benefits

Termination 

Benefits

Total 

Remuneration

Position

Short Term Employee

Long Term 

Employee 

Benefits

Post 

Employment 

Benefits

Termination 

Benefits

1 July 2016 - 30 June 2017

Base

Non-Monetary

Benefits

$ $ $ $ $ $

Chief Executive 256,773       -              1,055           25,677         -              283,505          

Finance Manager 178,761       -              6,932           17,876         -              203,569          

Operations Manager 164,923       -              418              16,492         -              181,834          

Total Remuneration 600,457       -              8,405           60,046         -              668,908          

Position

Short Term Employee

Benefits Long Term 

Employee 

Benefits

Post 

Employment 

Benefits

Termination 

Benefits

Total 

Remuneration

1 July 2015- 30 June 2016

Base

Non-Monetary

Benefits

$ $ $ $ $ $

Chief Executive 249,036       5,753           568              24,904         -              280,260          

Finance Manager 173,378       7,532           4,000           17,338         -              202,247          

Engineering Manager (former) 131,971       -              -              12,979         -              144,951          

Operations Manager (new) 46,769         -              15               4,677           -              51,461           

Total Remuneration 601,154       13,285         4,582           59,898         -              678,919          

Total 

Remuneration

Position

Short Term Employee

Benefits Long Term 

Employee 

Benefits

Post 

Employment 

Benefits

Termination 

Benefits
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2017 2016

$ $

9,276,453 8,717,076

1,697 -

18,098 8,067

1,501,909 682,889

- -

Amounts receivable from and payable to directors and their director related entities at the reporting date

comprise:

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Revenue

c) Transactions with directors and director related entities

In the ordinary course of business, under normal terms and conditions and excluding director remuneration,

during the financial year MIWB has dealt with the following entities, which are director related entities:

"    Mount Isa City Council, of which Mr Brett Peterson was a councillor.

MIWB entered into 15 transactions for the supply of goods and services to director related entities during the

year (2015-16: 14 transactions) and 5 transactions for the purchase of goods and services (2015-16: 8

transactions). The aggregate amounts recognised in profit or loss during the year relating to directors and

director related entities, other than directors' remuneration, comprise:

Water Charges

Other expenses

Expenditure

Payables

Trade creditors

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Receivables

Trade receivables

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Miscellaneous income

d) Transactions with key executive management personnel and key executive management personnel 

related entities

The terms and conditions of the transactions with key executive management personnel were no more

favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions

to non-key executive management personnel related entities on an arm's length basis.

From time to time, key executive management personnel of MIWB or their related entities, may purchase goods

from MIWB. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other employees

of MIWB or customers and are trivial or domestic in nature.
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2017 2016
$ $

3c

42,310 17,530

44,500 43,000

55,547 42,546

94,963 165,938

7,933 5,270

199,068 184,525

182,259 188,987

8,649 45,513

142,498 123,101

365,900 331,913

4,961,347 2,715,832

147,155 28,278

3,913,923 3,559,268

117,100 180,829

323,705 391,246

10,606,856 8,023,776

4

1,801,631 1,932,292

(393,296) (614,768)

4,163 11,489

1,412,498 1,329,013

(7,111) 8,575

(386,185) (623,342)
(393,296) (614,768)

4,694,448 4,391,749

1,408,334 1,317,525

- -

1,408,334 1,317,525

4,164 11,488

1,412,498 1,329,013

473,592 11,263,526

473,592 11,263,526

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Supplies and Services

General repairs and maintenance

Operating and maintenance

Insurance

Sun Water  – Lake Julius

Filtration costs

Other

Technical services

Audit fees – Internal fees

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Power costs

Water testing

Recruitment and relocation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting and secretarial

Audit fees – External audit*

Professional Services

* Total audit fees paid to the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2016-17 financial statements are estimated

to be $44,500 (2016: $43,000). There are no non-audit services included in this amount.

Deferred income tax(revenue) expense included in 

income tax expense comprises:

 - Penalties

Under/(over) provision in prior years

(c)  Tax expense relating to items of other comprehensive 

income

Deferred Tax

Net gain/loss on revaluation of property, plant & equipment

Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax assets

(Decrease)/ Increase in deferred tax liabilities

(b)  Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense and 

tax expense calculated per statutory income tax rate

Profit from operations before income tax expense

Tax at the rate of 30%   (2016: 30%)

temporary tax differences

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Income tax expense

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible

Income tax equivalents expense

Income Tax Expense

(a)  Income tax equivalents expense

Current income tax charges

Deferred income tax relating to origination and reversal of

Legal fees
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2017 2016

$ $

5

20,676,148 19,849,560

308,769 302,508

20,984,917 20,152,068

6

Land:

137,132 135,397

137,132 135,397

Leasehold Land:

568,986 568,986

568,986 568,986

Buildings:

683,034 648,282

(61,418) (46,504)

621,616 601,779

170,109,242 166,462,187

(92,351,248) (89,121,949)

77,757,995 77,340,238

98,603,765 94,294,058

(47,587,832) (44,310,438)

51,015,933 49,983,620

1,389,996 1,391,042

(817,136) (728,623)

572,860 662,420

1,902,846 1,616,333

Total 132,577,368 130,908,771

Cash at Bank

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Less: Accumulated depreciation

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Infrastructure: Pipelines

At cost

Plant and Equipment Infrastructure:

At cost

At fair value

At fair value

Less: Accumulated depreciation

At fair value

Deposits at Queensland Treasury Corporation, at call

Property Plant & Equipment

Capital work in progress

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At cost

Infrastructure: Other

At fair value

Less: Accumulated depreciation

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD
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The movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning

and end of the financial year is summarised as follows:

Movement in Carrying Amounts

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD
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Buildings - fair value hierarchy level 2 both 2016 and 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land - fair value hierarchy level 2 both 2016 and 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

MIWB’s other infrastructure assets were last revalued by BDA Management Pty Ltd at 30 June 2013. These

values reflect prices to purchase/construct similar infrastructure in a similar condition at that date, based on all

available data. The revaluation of infrastructure assets was carried out based on cost valuation pricing (as there

is no active market for such assets), with an assessment of conditions and remaining useful lives in order to

determine fair value. Non-current physical assets revalued included pump stations, pipelines, storages,

treatment facilities, buildings (including laboratories), electrical facilities and R48 facilities. Plant was excluded

from the revaluation as were assets at the end of their useful life. The revaluation carried out during April and

May 2013 involved a field inspection, condition assessment. The revaluations considered assessment of

remaining useful life for all assets, as well as aspects of optimisation and impairment. Significant judgement is

also used to assess the remaining service potential of the facility, given local climatic and environmental

conditions, projected usage, and records of the current condition of the facility. MIWB applied indices to the

2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 asset values (other than pipeline assets) in order to appropriately determine their

fair value.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MIWB's buildings were last revalued based on specific appraisals by Tara Runde (AAPI CPV 3341) of Herron

Todd White Independent Property Advisers at 30 June 2013. The fair value of the office building was

determined based on an average of rental rates per square meter advertised publically for comparable

buildings in similar locations, together with industry-accepted rental multiples for such buildings. Adjustments

are made for the age, internal features/design and physical condition of each building being valued, but none of

the adjustments have a significant impact on valuations. In addition to the formal revaluation of assets in 2013

MIWB applied indices to the 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 asset values in order to appropriately determine their

fair value.

Leasehold Land
Leasehold land is held under perpetual leases and is valued at cost.

MIWB's land was last revalued based on specific appraisals by Tara Runde (AAPI CPV 3341) of Herron Todd

White Independent Property Advisers at 30 June 2013. The fair value of land was based on publicly available

data on sales of similar land in nearby locations in the six months prior to the date of the revaluation. In

determining the values, adjustments were made to the sales data to take into account the location of MIWB's

land, its size, street/road frontage and access, and any significant restrictions. In addition to the formal

revaluation of assets in 2013 MIWB applied indices to the 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 asset values in order to

appropriately determine their fair value.

Infrastructure: Other - fair value hierarchy level 3 both 2016 and 2017

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)
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"
"
"

"
"
"

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

"    Valves

The asset data (Condition, component type, quantities) were then recorded into the supplied finance asset

register, from a combination of sources including previous valuation data, site data collection and supplied

engineering drawings as well as satellite imagery check points.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

The asset componentisation was expended for valve assets, pipelines were further segmented and updated to

include new works or replacement sections.

The assets to be valued, Pipeline Infrastructure, were initially checked for completeness of data and classified

into asset types based on function, the main categories include;

"    Pipework

Economic Useful Life (EUL) Assessment

"   Output fair value measurment.

Characterisation of assets

Infrastructure: Pipelines - fair value hierarchy level 3 both 2016 and 2017
As at 30 June 2016, MIWB completed an independent valuation of pipeline assets in accordance with AASB

116 Property Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Pipeline assets have been valued

using a cost approach. In undertaking the valuation of the pipeline assets, due consideration has been given to

the degree of obsolescence (physical, function/technical and economic) associated with each of these assets.

MIWB engaged Australis Asset Advisory Group to undertake an independent valuation of the fair value of the

pipeline assets. In doing this the valuer adopted the depreciated replacement cost approach. In addition to the

formal revaluation of assets in 2016 MIWB applied indices to the 2017 asset values in order to appropriately

determine their fair value. 

Global factors affecting the assets included, the remote location of Mount Isa, generally difficult access to the

pipe tracks and variable quality of installation and bedding of pipelines.

"    Protection Works
"    Site works
"    Surge Tanks
"    Manholes

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)

Pipeline infrastructure assets have been assessed utilising valuation techniques that maximise the use of

observable data where possible. Typically, the methodology applied will be determined based on the AASB 13

Input Decision tree. Standard valuation principles dictate that a cost approach method (generally incremental

Greenfield) is a suitable primary methodology when assessing assets that have no active market nor has

directly applicable income. The major steps in using the cost approach for these assets include:

"    Characterisation of assets:

Asset Types;
Componentisation; and
Additional global factors.

"    Inputs:

Remaining Service Potential (RSP) Assessment
Optimised Replacement Cost (ORC) analysis
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The significant inputs to the valuation include the Economic Useful Life (EUL), Remaining Service Potential

(RSP) and Optimised Replacement Cost (ORC).

The economic useful life has been assessed based on the aforementioned, asset category and asset type.

These lives were measured utilising, regional aggregated data, published failure rates, and supplied data.

The remaining service potential was measured based primarily on physical condition data as inspected by

Australis Valuers. The physical condition score was then combined with any relevant obsolescences factors to

arrive at an adopted remaining life.

Fair Value Measurement Outcomes

The optimised replacement cost has been calculated with reference to unit rates and component unit rates for

complex structures. These rates assume an incremental Greenfields approach and exclude Brownfield cost

components and other abnormal construction costs (flood or weather disruptions, traffic management,

temporary price fluctuations). The Valuers have relied on a combination of sources, cost guides, historical

costs, contractor rates, future works and regional information. Below is a table detailing the average applied unit

rates:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)

The fair value can be measured using 3 approaches to value. Below is a table listing the relevant approaches

and their characteristics relating in particular to infrastructure fair value measurement.

The Cost Approach (level 3) was adopted due to there being no directly attributable income to any individual

assets.

Inputs to Valuation

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Replacement Cost Development

Asset Type Component EUL (years)

Pipework 60-85

Valves Structure 70-85

Valves Line 60

Valves Air (inc structure) 85

Valves Scour 60

Surge Tanks 85

Protection Works 60

Manhole Structure 85

Asset Type Component Unit Rate

Pipework $450-$2,884/m

Valves Structure $18,890-$109,890/ea

Valves Line $55,000-$94,000/ea

Valves Air (inc structure) $25,000-$31,300/ea

Valves Scour $15,000-$15,400/ea

Surge Tanks $486,000-$827,580/ea

Protection Works $356-$560/m

Manhole Structure $15,200-$20,345

Asset Class Type of Asset Expected Fair Value 

Level

Likely Market 

Approach

There is an identifiable 
income stream

Going concern
Asset not subject to 

restriction on sale

There is no active 

market or income 
stream identified

Asset is subject to 
restrictions as to use 

or sale

Pipeline Infrastructure Level 2 Income approach

Pipeline Infrastructure Level 3
Cost approach 

(adopted)
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The significant inputs to the valuation include the Economic Useful Life (EUL), Remaining Service Potential

(RSP) and Optimised Replacement Cost (ORC).

The economic useful life has been assessed based on the aforementioned, asset category and asset type.

These lives were measured utilising, regional aggregated data, published failure rates, and supplied data.

The remaining service potential was measured based primarily on physical condition data as inspected by

Australis Valuers. The physical condition score was then combined with any relevant obsolescences factors to

arrive at an adopted remaining life.

Fair Value Measurement Outcomes

The optimised replacement cost has been calculated with reference to unit rates and component unit rates for

complex structures. These rates assume an incremental Greenfields approach and exclude Brownfield cost

components and other abnormal construction costs (flood or weather disruptions, traffic management,

temporary price fluctuations). The Valuers have relied on a combination of sources, cost guides, historical

costs, contractor rates, future works and regional information. Below is a table detailing the average applied unit

rates:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)

The fair value can be measured using 3 approaches to value. Below is a table listing the relevant approaches

and their characteristics relating in particular to infrastructure fair value measurement.

The Cost Approach (level 3) was adopted due to there being no directly attributable income to any individual

assets.

Inputs to Valuation

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Replacement Cost Development

Asset Type Component EUL (years)

Pipework 60-85

Valves Structure 70-85

Valves Line 60

Valves Air (inc structure) 85

Valves Scour 60

Surge Tanks 85

Protection Works 60

Manhole Structure 85

Asset Type Component Unit Rate

Pipework $450-$2,884/m

Valves Structure $18,890-$109,890/ea

Valves Line $55,000-$94,000/ea

Valves Air (inc structure) $25,000-$31,300/ea

Valves Scour $15,000-$15,400/ea

Surge Tanks $486,000-$827,580/ea

Protection Works $356-$560/m

Manhole Structure $15,200-$20,345

Asset Class Type of Asset Expected Fair Value 

Level

Likely Market 

Approach

There is an identifiable 
income stream

Going concern
Asset not subject to 

restriction on sale

There is no active 

market or income 
stream identified

Asset is subject to 
restrictions as to use 

or sale

Pipeline Infrastructure Level 2 Income approach

Pipeline Infrastructure Level 3
Cost approach 

(adopted)
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2017 2016

$ $

32,500 32,500

775,460 748,320

35,253,593 33,740,668

62,419,883 59,315,908

98,481,436 93,837,396

Level 3 significant valuation inputs and relationship to fair value.

Other Infrastructure Assets
The Infrastructure Assets of MIWB are specialised assets that are rarely sold in an asset market.

TOTAL

"    Asset purchase price/contract sum
"    Cost of design

The method used to value MIWB infrastructure utilises these factors which requires judgement and are 

therefore classed as unobservable.  While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based upon 

years of experience, different judgements could result in a different valuation.  The table below summarises the 

effect that changes in the most significant unobservable inputs would have on the valuation:

"    Contract management and

Accordingly, they have been valued using the Optimised Replacement Cost (ORC) method. ORC is the 

replacement cost of assets based on cost for replacement using modern techniques, technology and 

components. Factors taken into account include:

Infrastructure - 

Pipelines

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)

Carrying Amount of Assets Recognised at Fair Value

The Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment which has been revalued, that would have been 

recognised had the assets been carried at cost, is set out below:

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Buildings

"    Delivery

Infrastructure - Other

"    Installation Cost of design

"    Site works

"    Testing

"    Other professional fees

Land
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"    Standard useful life periods for similar assets

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Property Plant & Equipment (con't)

Useful life assessments were conducted taking into account:
"    Asset register remaining useful lives

"    Condition assessments from field assessments
"    Maintenance and performance records and
"    Input from MIWB/MIM operations personnel.

The condition assessment, which was used to estimate remaining useful life are tabled below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Range of inputs

Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Asset purchase price/contract sum
Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Site works
Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Delivery Range of freight costs

Instalation cost of design
Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Testing
Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Contract management
Varies depending on the 

complexity of the project

Varies depending upon the 

type of material

1 – 5 as specified above 

5-100 years

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair valueSignificant unobservable input

Cost of design

Remaining useful life

The higher the cost of design, the higher the fair value

Other professional fees The highercost of fees, the higher the fair value

Condition rating (useful life) The higher the condition rating, the lower the fair value.

The longer the remaining useful life, the higher the fair 

value.

The higher the purchase price/contract sum, the higher 

the fair value

The more site works required, the higher the fair value

The higher the freight cost, the higher the fair value

The higher the instalation cost of design, the higher the 

fair value

The more complex the testing required, the higher the 

fair value

The more complex contract management necessary for 

the project, the higher the fair value

Remaining useful 

life %

95% of useful life

75% of useful life

50% of useful life

25% of useful life

5% of useful life

Condition rating Condition description Description explanation

1 As new/ excellent Asset "as new"

2 Good

Asset is reliable, asset operates as intended and its appearance and 

structural integrity is up to the standard expected of an operating asset.

3 Fair

Asset is reliable and operates as intended, but its appearance and 

structural integrity are questionable.

4 Poor

Asset still operates, but does not meet intended duty or does not 

appear sound.

5 Unserviceable Asset is not functioning/ needs immediate attention.
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2017 2016

$ $

7

626,222 429,556

38,862 40,690

3,638,089 914,655

2,625,560 2,450,189

6,928,733 3,835,090

8

818,253 753,411

818,253 753,411

1,722,748 2,519,097

1,722,748 2,519,097

2,541,001 3,272,508

Current Liabilities

Other creditors

Current

No assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities.

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears with interest rates ranging from 4.68% to

7.62%.

Dividends payable *

Trade creditors

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Payables

* On 2 May 2017, MIWB wrote a letter to the Minister of Energy and Water Supply recommending the payment 

of a dividend to the State for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 based on 80% of NPAT as per section 

660(3) of the Water Act 2000 . The Minister approved the Dividend recommendation.

Total Financial Liabilities

All borrowings are in $AUD denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost. No interest has been

capitalised during the current or comparative reporting period. The repayment dates for the QTC loans range

from July 2018 to March 2024. There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreements during the

period.

Non Current

Loans – Queensland Treasury Corporation

Other Financial Liabilities

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Accruals

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD
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9

2017 2016
$ $

Employee benefits                       40,945                   31,345 
Accrued expenses -                       7,006                     8,224 
Deferred income                       47,287                   49,105 
Depreciation                       10,724                   13,178 

91,950 101,852

19,485,758 19,398,351
19,393,808 19,296,499

10 Other Liabilities

2017 2016
$ $

Non-current
Deferred liability *                  1,600,881                 796,154 
Grants received in advance                     157,623                 163,686 

                 1,758,504                 959,839 

It is the intention of MIWB to hold all its borrowings for their full term and as such there is no fair value

adjustment required to be made to the carrying amount of the borrowings.

Deferred tax asset comprises:

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Current and Deferred Tax

* MIWB has amended the pricing contract with MICC which avoids the cost of the new treatment plant

impacting on MICC pricing. In order to effect the adjustments to MICC pricing the retrospective change to the

contract has created a true-up liability in favour of MICC. The amount is not due to be paid to MICC until July

2018 and the liability will be reduced each year by charging MICC an amount less than that estimated by the

building block pricing model. MIWB has also recognised the calculated Fixed Charge True-up for MIM for the

period 2013-2017 and IPL for the period 2015-2017. 

Non-current
Deferred tax liability comprises of;

Deferred tax asset

Other Financial Liabilities (con't)

Net deferred tax liability

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Property Plant & Equipment

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Queensland Treasury Corporation advises that the amount to be repaid is the market value of the debt which is

$2,678,397 (2016 $3,542,819). Market Value at a relevant time reflects the remaining cash flows required to

repay the debt, valued at the current market rate of interest at the time which equates to the amount that would

be required at any point in time to be repaid, to extinguish the debt outstanding at that time.

Assets
Non-current

Liabilities
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11 Asset Revaluation Surplus

12

2017 2016

$ $

3,281,950 3,062,736

4,871,585 5,608,253

- -

(30,169) (39,423)

8,123,366 8,631,566

(1,796,153) (269,597)
Interest Receivable 6,183 (42,307)

(177,205) (77,216)

890 12,444

3,723,000 98,141

12,440 (10,937)

19,559 (187)
Deferred Income (6,063) (6,062)

(376,283) (614,767)

(583,818) 636,000

8,945,916 8,357,078

Long Service Leave

Depreciation

Payables

Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Annual Leave 

Net cash from operating activities 

Loss on Sale of Asset / write-downs

GST Receivables

Deferred Tax  

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Revaluation increments and decrements above are disclosed net of tax.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provision for Taxes

Prepayments

Profit after income tax

Cashflow Information

The asset revaluation surplus represents the net effect of upward and downward revaluations of property, plant

and equipment to fair value.

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Receivables

Profit on Sale of Asset

Reconciliation of Profit to Net Cash from Operating 

Activities
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13

i)

ii)

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for operations.

Ageing analysis, earnings at risk

MIWB measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

MIWB's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks - interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market 

risk. All financial risk is managed by the Finance Section under policies approved by MIWB. MIWB provides 

written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

Financial Instruments

Credit Risk Exposure

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where MIWB may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a

financial instrument failing to discharge their obligation.

MIWB's financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable,

and loans from Queensland Treasury Corporation.

Cash flow analysis

Financial Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the entity's risk management objectives and

policies. It has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective

implementation of the objectives and policies to MIWB's Finance Manager. MIWB's risk management policies

and objectives are designed to minimise the potential impacts of these risks on the results of MIWB where such

impacts may be material. MIWB receives monthly reports from the Finance Manager through which it reviews

the effectiveness of the processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets.

The entity's internal auditors also review the risk management policies and processes and report their findings

to the Audit and Finance Committee.

No financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the Statement of Financial

Position.

Credit risk

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MIWB does not have any derivative instruments at financial year end.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Financial Risk Management

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Measurement Method

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Market risk

Liquidity risk

Risk Exposure
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired.

No collateral is held as security and no credit enhancements relate to financial assets held by MIWB.

The method for calculating any provisional impairment for risk is based on past experience, current and

expected changes in economic conditions and changes in client credit ratings. These economic and geographic

changes form part of MIWB's documented risk analysis assessment in conjunction with historic experience and

associated industry data.

MIWB manages credit risk through the use of a credit management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the

exposure to credit default by ensuring that MIWB invests in secure assets and monitors all funds owned on a

timely basis. Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each asset class of recognised financial

assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets (inclusive of any provision for impairment) as disclosed in

the statement of financial position.

Financial Instruments (cont.)

There is concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables as MIWB has a small number of customers.

MIWB policy is that water sales are only made to eligible customers.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIWB has four key customers which operate in the West Queensland region. As such there is some 

concentration of trade receivables. The individual most material trade receivable balance at 30 June 2017 is 

$1,501,909, which represents 50 per cent of the total trade receivables at balance date (2016 $1,403,343 and 

57 per cent).

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD
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iii)

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by MIWB. It represents the contractual

maturity of financial liabilities, calculated based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities and the

repayment of the principal amount outstanding at balance date. The undiscounted cash flows in these tables

differ from the amounts in the Statement of Financial Position that are based on discounted cash flows.

Ageing of past due but not impaired as well as impaired financial assets are disclosed in the following table:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Instruments (cont.)

MIWB manages liquidity risk through the use of a liquidity management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce

the exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring MIWB has sufficient funds available to meet employee and supplier

obligations as they fall due. This is achieved by ensuring that minimum levels of cash are held within the

various bank accounts so as to match the expected duration of the various employee and supplier liabilities.

Liquidity Risk

MIWB is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its payables and borrowings from Queensland Treasury

Corporation for capital works. The borrowings are based on Queensland Government's gazetted floating rate.

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where MIWB may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets.

<30 Days 30 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days >90 days Total

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $

Receivables        - - 18,167 134,808 152,975

As at 30 June 2017 no financial assets were impaired.

<30 Days 30 - 60 Days 61 - 90 Days >90 days Total

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $

Receivables        - 766,646         - (73) 766,573

As at 30 June 2016 no financial assets were impaired.

2016 Financial Assets Past Due But Not Impaired

2017 Financial Assets Past Due But Not Impaired

Note < 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years Total

Financial Liabilities $ $ $ $

Payables 7 6,928,733               -   -                  6,928,733

Other financial liabilities

- QTC Borrowings 8 910,401 1,373,705 600,996 2,885,103

Total 7,839,134 1,373,705 600,996 9,813,836

                                     2017 Payable in
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iv)

v)

Financial Instruments (cont.)

MIWB does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed directly to commodity price changes or

other market prices. MIWB is exposed to interest rate risk through its borrowings from Queensland Treasury

Corporation and cash deposits in interest bearing accounts. MIWB does not undertake any hedging in relation

to interest risk and manages its risk as per the market risk management strategy.

The MIWB's exposure to interest rate risk, is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on a report similar to that which may by provided to

management, depicting the outcome to profit and loss and equity if interest rates would change by +/- 1% from

the year-end rates applicable to MIWB's financial assets and liabilities. With all other variables held constant,

MIWB would have a surplus and equity increase/(decrease) of $184,439 (2016: $168,795). This is mainly

attributable to MIWB's exposure to variable interest rates on Cash and cash equivalents and variable interest

rates on its borrowings from Queensland Treasury Corporation.

Note < 1 year 1 - 5 years > 5 years Total

Financial Liabilities $ $ $ $

Payables 7 3,835,090               -   -                  3,835,090

Other financial liabilities

- QTC Borrowings 8 910,401 1,940,680 944,423 3,795,504

Total 4,745,491 1,940,680 944,423 7,630,594

                                     2016 Payable in

2017

$ $ $ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents 20,984,917 (209,849) (209,849) 209,849 209,849

QTC Borrowings 2,541,001 25,411 25,411 (25,410) (25,410)
Potential Impact on Profit 

and Equity
(184,439) (184,439) 184,439 184,439

2017 Interest Rate Risk

Equity

-1%
Profit & 

Loss

Financial Instruments Carrying 

Amount

+1%
Profit & 

Loss
Equity
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The fair value of Borrowings is notified by the Queensland Treasury Corporation. It is calculated using

discounted cash flow analysis and the effective interest rate (refer Note 8) and is disclosed below:

Fair Value

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

The fair value of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original

transaction, less any provision for impairment, as recognised in the statement of financial position.

MIWB does not recognise any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

MIWB's sensitivity to interest has increased in the current period due to increases in cash.

Financial Instruments (cont.)

2016

$ $ $ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents 20,152,068 (201,521) (201,521) 201,521 201,521

QTC Borrowings 3,272,508 32,726 32,726 (32,725) (32,725)
Potential Impact on Profit 

and Equity
(168,795) (168,795) 168,796 168,796

2016 Interest Rate Risk

Profit & 

Loss
Equity

+1%

Financial Instruments Carrying 

Amount

-1%
Profit & 

Loss
Equity

Carrying

Amount
Fair Value

Carrying

Amount
Fair Value

$    $    $ $

2,541,001 2,678,397 3,272,508 3,542,819

2,541,001 2,678,397 3,272,508 3,542,819Total

2017

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

     QTC Borrowings

2016

Financial Liabilities
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(a)

2017 2016

Number of cases Number of cases

1 1

1 1

(b)

Contingencies

MIM have invoiced according to the new framework for electricity supplied since 1 January 2016, however in 

light of the need for due process and consultation MIWB disputed the charges which were not consistent with 

the existing agreement and noted a contingent liability of $962,374 inclusive of GST.

MIWB has continued to pay electricity at the previously agreed rate while disputing the new rate. 

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

At the date of this report, there are no known contingent liabilities apart from the matters referred to below:

As at 30 June 2017, the following cases were filed in the courts naming MIWB acting as defendant:

Litigation in Progress

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Supreme Court

Total

Proceedings were commenced by Nortask Pty Ltd in 2008 in relation to claims arising out of works associated

with the Lake Moondarra Pipeline in 2002/2003. No step has been taken in the proceedings since 2009. As a

consequence of this fact, Nortask Pty Ltd must seek an order from the court before proceeding any further. The

solicitors for the plaintiff have issued a letter pursuant to the court rules stating that they intend to proceed with

the litigation. However, this letter is not a "step" for the purpose of the court rules, it is no more than notification

of an intention. MIWB rejects the claims and intends defending them should they be pursued.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

It is not possible to make a reliable estimate the outcome or the  final amount payable, if any, in respect of the 

litigation before the courts at this time.

Contingent Liability

In the 2015-16 financial statements MIWB detailed a dispute with Mount Isa Mines, MIWB's electricity supplier,  

regarding a significant restructure of the electricity pricing framework which moved from energy consumption 

based charges to electricity capacity based charging. The impact on MIWB customers was a significant 

increase in the cost.

At a Board meeting on 29 June 2017 the Board approved a draft Power Purchase Agreement and Letter of 

Intent agreeing (on signing the Power Purchase Agreement) to pay the outstanding amounts within 60 days of 

signing the agreement thus creating a real liability. Mount Isa Mines have also provided a Letter of Intent with 

respect to the outstanding charges being payable.

Accordingly MIWB has taken to account the $2,745,095.41 inclusive of GST as an expense as at 30 June 2017.
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MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Budget vs Actual Comparison

Statement of Comprehensive Income Budget Actual
2017 2017 Variance Variance

Variance 

Notes $ $ $

% of 

Budget

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS      

Revenue                                                                          

Water charges 1 19,774,000 21,620,297 1,846,297 9.3%
Interest 2 410,000 347,288 (62,712) -15.3%

Other revenue 3 547,000 537,994 (9,006) -1.6%

TOTAL REVENUE 20,731,000 22,505,579 1,774,579 8.6%

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - 30,169 30,169 NA

TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 20,731,000 22,535,748 1,804,748 8.7%

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Employee expenses 4 (1,783,000) (1,756,154) 26,846 1.5%

Supplies and services 5 (9,747,200) (10,606,856) (859,656) -8.8%

Depreciation and amortisation (4,929,000) (4,871,585) 57,415 1.2%
Finance/borrowing costs (154,000) (175,327) (21,327) -13.8%

Other expenses (585,300) (431,378) 153,922 26.3%

Losses

Write down of Fluoridation assets - - - NA

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment - - - NA

TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (17,198,500) (17,841,301) (642,801) -3.7%

OPERATING RESULTS FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,532,500 4,694,447 1,161,947 32.9%

                              

Income tax expense (1,059,750) (1,412,498) (352,748) -33.3%

OPERATING RESULTS FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS AFTER INCOME TAX 2,472,750 3,281,950 809,200 32.7%

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

Operating Result:
Increase (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus - 1,105,049 - NA

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX - 1,105,049 - NA

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,472,750 3,281,950 809,200 32.7%
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MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Budget vs Actual Comparison (cont.)

Statement of Financial Position Budget Actual

Variance 

Notes 2017 2017 Variance Variance

$ $ $

% of 

Budget

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 16,181,753 20,984,917 4,803,164 29.7%

Receivables 7 1,990,904 4,739,477 2,748,573 138.1%

Other current assets - 7,959 7,959 NA

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 18,172,657 25,732,353 7,559,696 41.6%

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 133,466,271 132,577,368 (888,903) -0.7%

Intangible assets - - - NA

Receivables 117,324 - (117,324) -100.0%

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 133,583,595 132,577,368 (1,006,227) -0.8%

TOTAL ASSETS 151,756,252 158,309,721 6,553,469 4.3%

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 1,854,834 6,928,733 5,073,899 273.6%

Accrued employee benefits 65,484 77,687 12,203 18.6%

Other financial liabilities 378,711 818,253 439,542 116.1%

Tax liabilities (241,980) 285,048 527,028 -217.8%

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,057,049 8,109,721 6,052,672 294.2%

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued employee benefits 39,000 58,796 19,796 50.8%

Other financial liabilities 2,450,189 1,722,748 (727,441) -29.7%

Deferred tax liabilities 8 19,296,498 19,393,808 97,310 0.5%

Other liabilities 959,902 1,758,504 798,602 83.2%

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 22,745,589 22,933,856 188,267 0.8%

TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,802,638 31,043,577 6,240,939 25.2%

NET ASSETS 126,953,614 127,266,144 312,530 0.2%

EQUITY

Contributed equity 30,430,390 30,430,390 - 0.0%

Accumulated surplus 37,100,462 36,307,943 (792,519) -2.1%

Asset revaluation surplus 59,422,762 60,527,811 1,105,049 1.9%

TOTAL EQUITY 126,953,614 127,266,144 312,531 0.2%
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MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

Budget vs Actual Comparison (cont.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD 30 JUNE 2017

Statement of Cash Flow Budget Actual

Variance 

Notes 2017 2017 Variance Variance

$ $ $

% of 

Budget

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Inflows:

Receipts from customers 14,071,248 20,628,871 6,557,623 46.6%

Interest received 273,000 353,471 80,471 29.5%

Other Income 372,000 531,931 159,931 43.0%

GST per budget 8 1,181,399 - (1,181,399) -100.0%

GST Input Tax Credits from ATO 8 - 1,322,740 1,322,740 NA

GST received from customers 8 - 57,108 57,108 NA

Outflows:

Employee expenses (1,139,308) (1,724,155) (584,847) 51.3%

Supplies and services 5 (7,786,409) (7,687,695) 98,714 -1.3%

Finance/borrowing costs (77,000) (175,327) (98,327) 127.7%

Other expenses (390,200) (431,378) (41,178) 10.6%

GST paid to suppliers 8 - (1,500,985) (1,500,985) NA

GST remitted to ATO 8 - (56,068) (56,068) NA

Income taxes paid (1,807,430) (2,372,598) (565,168) 31.3%

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 4,697,300 8,945,916 4,248,616 90.4%

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Inflows:

Sale of property, plant and equipment - 30,169 30,169 NA

Outflows:

Payments for property, plant and equipment (5,843,502) (4,961,541) 881,961 -15.1%

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,843,502) (4,931,372) 912,130 -15.6%

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Outflows:

Repayment of borrowings (373,924) (731,505) (357,581) 95.6%

Loans received - - - NA

Grant funds received - - - NA

Dividends (2,450,189) (2,450,190) (1) 0.0%

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,824,113) (3,181,695) (357,582) 12.7%

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,970,315) 832,849 4,803,164 -121.0%

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 20,152,068 20,152,068 0 0.0%

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 6 16,181,753 20,984,917 4,803,164 29.7%

41

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements



79MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD  2016-17 ANNUAL REPORT

15

2. Actuals are lower than budget due to lower than forecast interest rates.

3. Actuals are lower than budget due to lower than estimated demand for pumping water to Ernest Henry Mine.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

8. For budgeting purposes GST is not split between the categories reported in the financial statements.

Explanations of Major Variances

4. Actuals are lower than budget due to lower than budgeted staff numbers for part of the financial year.

5. Actuals are higher than budget due to the expensing of electricity charges previously in dispute.

Statement of Financial Position

6. Actuals are higher than budget due to lower expenses and lower than budgeted capital spend during the 

financial year.

7. Actuals are higher than budget due to the fixed and variable charge true-ups at year end (see 2. above).

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Comprehensive Income

1. Actuals are higher than budget due to fixed and variable charge true-ups at year end. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Budget vs Actual Comparison (cont.)
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Certificate of the Mount Isa Water Board

(a)

(b)

(c)

Dated day of August 2017

Chief Executive OfficerChairperson

Steven de Kruijff Stephen Farrelly

The prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with 

in all material respects; 

The statements have been drawn up so as to present a true and fair view, in accordance with 

prescribed accounting standards, of the transactions of the Mount Isa Water Board for the period 1 

July 2016 to 30 June 2017 and of the financial position of the Mount Isa Water Board as at the end 

of that year.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62 (1) of the Financial 

Accountability Act 2009 (the Act), relevant sections of the Financial and Performance Management Standard

2009 and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with Section 62(1)(b) of the Act we certify that in our

opinion:

CERTIFICATE OF THE MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD

These assertions are based on an appropriate system of internal controls and risk management 

processes being effective, in all material respects, with respect to financial reporting throughout 

the reporting period.

MOUNT ISA WATER BOARD
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Glossary

ADWG Australian Drinking Water Guidelines 
(2011)

Announced 
Allocation 

A defined share of water available to be 
taken under an annual water allocation, 
and recalculated annually

ANZECC Australian and New Zealand 
Environment and Conservation Council

Blue-green 
algae

A naturally occurring type of bacteria 
known as “Cyanobacteria” and found in 
rivers, lakes, damp soil, tree trunks and 
hot springs. Some species of BGA have 
the potential to produce toxins.

Board The Board of Directors of Mount Isa 
Water Board 

DEWS Department of Energy and Water 
Supply

DOL Distribution Operations Licence issued 
under Division 1A of the Water Act

DWQMP Drinking Water Quality Management 
Plan

EBIT Earnings before Interest and Tax

FTE Full Time Equivalent (employee)

Glencore Glencore completed a merger with 
Xstrata in May 2013 and the local 
mining operator is now known as 
Mount Isa Mines, a Glencore Company.

Gulf Plan Water Resource (Gulf ) Plan 2007

ha Hectare

km Kilometre or kilometres

Lake Julius Owned and operated by SunWater, a 
government-owned corporation

Lake 
Moondarra

Owned by Mount Isa Mines Limited as 
resource operations licence holder

LMDWPS Lake Moondarra Deep Well Pump 
Station

LMPPS Lake Moondarra Pontoon Pump Station

M Million

MIM Mount Isa Mines, a Glencore Company 

MIWB Mount Isa Water Board – as the 
Statutory Corporate entity

MICC Mount Isa City Council

ML Megalitre (one million litres)

NWQWP North West Queensland Water Pipeline 
Pty Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
SunWater

QTC Queensland Treasury Corporation

R48 Reserve R48 Water and Recreation Reserve

ROL The Resource Operations Licence for the 
relevant storage facility

ROP The Resource Operations Plan for the 
respective storage facility pursuant to the 
Gulf Plan

RTI Right to Information relating to the 
Right to Information Act 2009 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition

SunWater The government-owned corporation 
operating under that name

TAMP Total Asset Management Plan of Mount 
Isa Water Board

Water Act Water Act 2000 (Qld) as amended
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Please tick the appropriate response.

1. The level of detail in the annual report was:

 far too little 
 too little 
 just right 
 too much 
 far too much

2.  The language and style of the annual report  
text were:

 far too simple 
 too simple 
 just right 
 too complex 
 far too complex

3.   For my needs, the length of the annual report was:

 far too short 
 too short 
 just right 
 too long 
 far too long

4.  I found the design of the annual report to be:

 very unappealing 
 unappealing 
 acceptable 
 appealing 
 very appealing

5.   Compared with the previous annual report, this 
year’s report was:

 much worse 
 worse 
 about the same 
 better 
 much better
 OR I didn’t see the previous annual report

Thank you for your comments.

MIWB staff Please return the completed survey to the Chief Executive.
External readers Please return the completed survey to: 

Mount Isa Water Board, PO Box 1712, Mount Isa, Qld 4825

6.  If I could make one improvement to the annual 
report, it would be:

7.  Please use this space to provide any comments you 
would like to make that have not been addressed 
elsewhere.

8.   What is your main reason for reading the report?

 Business purposes
 Library reference 
 Official use
 Staff use
 General interest 
 Student needs 
 Other (please specify below)

9.  The annual report is available through  
the Mount Isa Water Board website at  
www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au and in the future:

 I would prefer to access it electronically
 I still want a hard copy

Readers’ survey

MIWB is committed to improving the quality of our annual report. Please take a few moments to complete this survey 
and return it to us.

The survey can be detached from the annual report, or hard copies can be downloaded from www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au.
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual 
report reference

Letter of 
compliance

•  A letter of compliance from the 
accountable officer or statutory  
body to the relevant Minister

ARRs – section 7 4

Accessibility •  Table of contents
•  Glossary

ARRs – section 9.1 8
83

•  Public availability ARRs – section 9.2 3

•  Interpreter service statement Queensland Government 
Language Services Policy

ARRs – section 9.3

7

•  Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968
ARRs – section 9.4

3

•  Information licensing QGEA - Information Licensing
ARRs – section 9.5

N/A to MIWB

General 
information

•  Introductory information ARRs – section 10.1 5

•  Agency role and main functions ARRs – section 10.2 5

•  Operating environment ARRs – section 10.3 14-16

Non-financial 
performance

•  Government’s objectives for the 
community

ARRs – section 11.1 17

•  Other whole-of-government plans / 
specific initiatives

ARRs – section 11.2 N/A to MIWB

•  Agency objectives and performance 
indicators

ARRs – section 11.3 10,11,17-22

•  Agency service areas, and service 
standards 

ARRs – section 11.4 N/A to MIWB

Financial 
performance

•  Summary of financial performance ARRs – section 12.1 11, 35-37

Governance – 
management  
and structure

•  Organisational structure ARRs – section 13.1 28

•  Executive management ARRs – section 13.2 28,29

•  Government bodies (statutory bodies  
and other entities)

ARRs – section 13.3 N/A to MIWB 

•  Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 Public Sector Ethics Act 1994
ARRs – section 13.4

33

Governance – risk 
management and 
accountability

•  Risk management ARRs – section 14.1 30

•  Audit Committee ARRs – section 14.3 27

•  Internal Audit ARRs – section 14.4 30,31

•  External scrutiny ARRs – section 14.2 30

•  Information systems and recordkeeping ARRs – section 14.5 29

Annual report compliance checklist
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual 
report reference

Governance – 
human resources

•  Workforce planning, attraction and 
retention, and performance

ARRs – section 15.1 33

•  Early retirement, redundancy and 
retrenchment

Directive No.11/12  
Early Retirement,  

Redundancy and Retrenchment
ARRs – section 15.2

N/A to MIWB

Open data •  Statement advising publication of 
information

ARRs – section 16

• Consultancies ARRs – section 33.1 31

• Overseas travel ARRs – section 33.2 N/A to MIWB

• Queensland Language Services Policy ARRs – section 33.3 N/A to MIWB

Financial 
statements

•  Certification of financial statements FAA – section 62
FPMS – sections 42, 43 and 50

ARRs – section 17.1

80

•  Independent Auditor’s Report FAA – section 62
FPMS – section 50
ARRs – section 17.2

81,82

FAA Financial Accountability Act 2009 FPMS Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009
ARRs Annual report requirements for Queensland Government agencies

This annual report is available for viewing or download from www.mountisawater.qld.gov.au/opendata/corporate-documents

Annual report compliance checklist
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